COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

COUNTY OF ISLE OF WIGHT

VIRGINIA

Prepared by the Department of Budget & Finance






Isle of Wight, Virginia
Table of Contents

Introductory Section
Transmittal Letter
Principal Officials
Certificate of Achievement
Isle of Wight County Organizational Chart

Financial Section
Report of Independent Auditors

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of the Government Funds’ Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in F und

Balances

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement

of Activities

Proprietary Fund
Statements of Net Assels

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund

Balances
Statements of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures — Budget and Actual -

General Fund

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress for Defined Benefit Pension Plans

And Other Post-employment Benefit Plans

Exhibit
A-1
A-2
A-3

A-3

Page
I-ix

xi
xii

Llu-s.
[V (Y
N

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23-57

58-63
64

65-66



County of Isle of Wight, Virginia
Table of Contents
(Continued)

Other Supplementary Information

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual — Capital Projects Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Combining Balance Sheets

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditure, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budget and Actual

Component Unit — School Board

Combining Balance Sheets — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of Balance Sheets 1o the Statement of Net Assets —

Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Reveriues, Expenditures, and Changes
In Fund Balances — Govermmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and
and Changes in Fund Balances 1o the Statement of Activities

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Budge! and Actual — Governmental Funds -
Component Unit — School Board

Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assels —
Proprietary Fund

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund

Fiduciary Funds
Combining Statements of Assets and Liabilities
Combining Statements Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Component Unit — Industrial Development Authority
Statements of Net Assets
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assels
Statements of Cash Flows

Statistical Section
Statistical Section Overview
Net Assets by Component
Change in Net Assets
Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds

Exhibit

B-3

B4

B-5

B-6

B-8

B-9

B-10

C-1
C-2
C-3
C-H

Page

67
68
69
70-74
75
76
77
78
79-80
81
82
83
84
85
86

87
88

89
90
91-92
93
94



County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Table of Contents
(Continued)
Exhibit Page
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of
Taxable Property C-5 95
Assessed Value of Taxable Property C-6 96
Property Tax Rates C-7 97
Principal Property Taxpayers C-8 98
Property Tax Levies and Collections c-9 99
Taxable Sales by Category C-10 100
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt 10 Assessed Value and Net
Bonded Debt Per Capita C-11 101
Legal Debt Margin C-12 102
Demographic Statistics C-13 103
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function/Program C-14 104-105
Operating Indicators by Function/Program C-15 106
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program C-16 107

Acknowledgement 108



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



November 29, 2012

Members of the Board of Supervisors and Citizens of the County of Isle of Wight,
Virginia:

We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the County of Isle of Wight, Virginia for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. This
report is intended to provide informative and relevant financial data for the
residents of the County, Board of Supervisors, investors, creditors and any other
interested readers.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the County’s management. To
the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds of the County. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the County has
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to
protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in
conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Because
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free
from material misstatement. Further, as management we assert that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County's financial
activities have been included in this financial report.

KPMG LLP, a certified public accounting firm, audited the County’s basic financial
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the basic financial statements of the County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
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examining; on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
basic financial statements, assessing the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the County’s basic
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP with noted emphasis in the independent auditors report as
presented in the first component of the financial section of this report. The
independent audit of the financial statements of the County is part of a broader,
federal and state mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of
federal and state grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the government's internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with additional emphasis on the
administration of federal and state awards. This “Single Audit” information will
be available in a separately issued report and will be available upon request from
the Department of Budget & Finance.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MDé&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County’s
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors.

Profile of the Government

Isle of Wight County was formerly established in 1634, although prior to 1637, the
County was known as Warrosquoyacke. It is one of the oldest county
governments in the United States of America and one of the original eight (8) shires
by an order of King Charles I. Nestled on the shores of the James River in
southeastern Virginia, Isle of Wight's residents enjoy its rural nature spread over
320 square miles coupled with the quaint atmosphere of two (2) incorporated
Towns - Smithfield and Windsor.

Isle of Wight County has a rich history that pre-dates its formal establishment in
1634. The County provided fertile farmland and hunting opportunities for its
Native American inhabitants prior to the first English settlement in 1619. It still
provides an excellent quality of life for over 35,000 residents while balancing its
rural history with a future focused on quality commercial and residential growth.
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The County provides a wide array of services to citizens. Major programs include
Public Safety, Health and Welfare, Parks and Recreation, and Community
Development. The financial reporting for the County covers all of these major
areas, as well as the County Public Schools.

The Public Safety programs of the County feature five fire stations and two rescue
squads staffed by well-trained volunteers and a growing number of the
professional firefighters and EMS personnel with state of the art equipment and
well-maintained facilities. Two of the five fire stations now provide first response
services for both fire and EMS calls.

The Health and Welfare services program for the County was vastly improved by
acquiring a facility formerly utilized as a family medical practice to serve as the
new location for the Isle of Wight County Health Department. The property was
offered to the County at half of its appraised value. After renovations are
completed, it will serve the community well by allowing the Health Department to
significantly expand its services in the future.

Parks and Recreation programs are essential to the quality of life of County
residents. The Isle of Wight County Fair has become one of the community’s
signature events. Held at Heritage Park, it provides great family entertainment
and highlights the County’s rural roots, attracting 15,000 - 33,000 visitors annually
from all over the Commonwealth of Virginia.

The County is also home to Windsor Castle Park located in the heart of downtown
Smithfield. Itis a 209.8 acre riverside park that features a woodland trail system,
picnic and play areas, a dog park, kayak and canoe launch, scenic overlook and the
Windsor Castle Historic Site. Windsor Castle Farm was originally part of a 1,450
acre parcel patented in 1637 by Arthur Smith and is situated on a knoll overlooking
the Pagan River. The site preserves the rich historic heritage of the Castle, as well as
providing a passive public park on the estate grounds.

Community Development continues to be an extremely important focus of the
Board of Supervisors in that it provides an opportunity for the County to preserve
its natural beauty while simultaneously promoting smart growth. The County’s
Comprehensive Land Use Plan is designed to encourage manageable residential
and commercial growth in specific areas of the County while preserving farm land
and forestry in an effort to maintain the County’s rural character and natural
beauty.
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As part of its community-wide vision, the County has designated three strategic
growth areas called Development Service Districts, or DSDs. The three DSDs are
located around and close to the existing population centers of Carrollton, Windsor,
and Camptown. The benefits of these strategic growth areas include:

~ Existing and planned public water and sewer facilities.

- Ready access to the region’s transportation network, including Route 17,
Route 258, Route 460, and Route 58 as well as two rail lines, which
provide direct connections to the Virginia Ports.

- Proximity to the nearby population centers of Smithfield, Windsor,
Franklin, Newport News, and Hampton as well as the rest of the
Hampton Roads region.

- Planned, future growth opportunities including a mix of residential,
commercial and industrial land uses.

The County’s Public Schools are operated by a legally distinct governing body, the
County provides a significant portion of the funding for a public school system
recognize for excellence.

Isle of Wight County Schools implement research-based instructional strategies to
provide rigorous and engaging learning experiences that ensure student success.
The division educates more than 5,500 students in grades PreK-12 at nine schools:
five elementary schools, two middle schools, and two high schools.

All nine schools earned full accreditation from the Virginia Department of
Education. Isle of Wight County Schools met or exceeded the state pass rates in all
core subjects. Division-wide, students increased overall pass rates in Science in
every student subgroup.Isle of Wight County Schools earned an on-time
graduation rate of nearly 89 percent (88.5%) for the Class of 2011, according to data
released by the Virginia Department of Education. Advanced Placement Test
results indicate that Isle of Wight County students compare very favorably with
students around the state of Virginia as well as those in the Southern Region.

The Isle of Wight County Schools continue to rise to the challenge of meeting
increases in state and federal benchmarks, many of which are unfunded mandates.
The division's success is attributed to the dedicated administrators, teachers, and

staff. The division benefits from strong relationships between the community and
the schools.
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Economic Overview

Isle of Wight County is a community of choice for homeowners and businesses
alike because of its rural aesthetics and affordable tax rates. Maintaining and
improving the quality of life for residential and commercial residents requires a
commitment to the long-term strategies for economic development.

Those strategies include significant investment in the infrastructure to serve the
County’s Shirley T. Holland Intermodal Industrial Park located just east of the
Town of Windsor. The Industrial Park is currently home to warehouse distribution
facilities for Cost Plus World Market and Safco Products, Inc. and is poised to
attract significant new investments in distribution and manufacturing facilities that
will create new jobs and diversify the County’s tax base.

On October 2011, Virginia Governor Bob McDonnell announced that Vermont-
based Green Mountain Coffee Roasters, Inc. (GMCR), a leader in specialty coffee
and coffeemakers, will establish a production and distribution facility in Isle of
Wight County. The company will invest $180 million over the initial five years of
operations. GMCR has agreed to purchase the Johnson Development Building, a
330,000 square-foot spec building on a 64-acre parcel of land in Phase II of Shirley
T. Holland Intermodal Park, where it expects to house coffee roasting, grinding,
flavoring, and packaging of its single-serve portion packs for its Keurig® Single-
Cup Brewing System. Within five years, it is estimated the new facility will have as
many as 800 employees.

Tractor Supply Company (TSC) officially opened its new Smithfield store in
October 2011. TSC is the leading retail farm and ranch store brand in America.
Founded in 1938 as a mail order tractor parts business, TSC owns and operates
more than 1,043 stores in 44 states supplying daily farm and ranch maintenance
supplies to a targeted customer base. The store’s products include: clothing, equine
and pet supplies, tractor/trailer parts and accessories, lawn and garden supplies,
sprinkler/irrigation parts, power tools, fencing, welding and pump supplies,
riding mowers and more. At TSC, customers find everything they need to maintain
their farms, ranches, homes and animals.

Following an 18-month renovation, what was a vacant convenience store has been
transformed into the family-owned and operated Bridges bar and restaurant.
Bridges quietly opened its doors in September 2011 and has been getting rave
reviews. The classy but casual restaurant serves American fare including steak,
seafood and pasta. The venue also offers live music, a dance floor and billiards.
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The southern part of the County saw an increase in activity following the
announcement of the International Paper Fluff Plant project. RepairTech, an
industrial contractor with 35 employees, purchased the 31,560 SF former Caraustar
building at 1601 Carrsville Hwy. and will expand its operations and create 15 new
jobs. RepairTech previously leased space across the highway from its new location.

Air Mechanix, an HVAC contractor, relocated from a neighboring county to its
current locationin Isle of Wight County. Air Mechanix has 5 employees.

Drake’s Food Service Inc. is a locally owned sausage manufacturer in Walters,
Virginia that just opened in December of 2011. Drake’s employs 7 people and its
sausage is listed on Virginia’s Finest Directory.

The County also remains focused on promoting the expansion of its existing
businesses. The international headquarters for Smithfield Foods, a Fortune 500
company, as well as several of its food processing facilities is located in Isle of
Wight County.

Smithfield Packing’s 37,000 square foot Innovation Center opened in October 2011.
The facility includes areas for product development and small batch sample
manufacturing. The front of the house contains two state-of-the-art foodservice
kitchens, conference areas, training room, dedicated cutting room and customer
presentation areas. The USDA-inspected pilot plant can replicate production of any
of Smithfield’s processing plants.

Smithfield Foods is a $12 billion global food company and the world’s largest pork
processor and hog producer. In the United States, the company is also the leader in
numerous packaged meats categories with popular brands including Farmland®,
Smithfield®, Eckrich®, Armour®, and John Morrell®. In June 2012, Smithfield
Foods opened its flagship restaurant/retail store in Smithfield to highlight its food
products.

International Paper had been a mainstay in the County untl its 2009
announcement to close its local plant; however, in 2010, the company announced
that it will reopen a portion of its operation to manufacture fluff paper.
International Paper is also in negotiations with two other companies that have

announced that they will utilize a portion of the former facility to start new
operations.
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Financial Guidelines

The County prepares annually an Operating Budget that balances revenues and
expenditures within available resources. The Operating Budget guidelines for the
FY2011-12 were as follows:

- Budget requests were to reflect a flat budget.

— No salary adjustments for FY2011-12.

~ Operationally critical needs that required additional funding required
departments to provide the appropriate documentation to explain/support
the request.

The County also prepares a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) annually. The CIP
serves as a planning tool for the efficient, effective and equitable distribution of
public improvements throughout the County. The plan represents a balance
between finite resources and an increasing number of competing priorities. The
County develops a five year CIP each year inclusive of the capital needs of the
Public Schools. The Board of Supervisors approves the first year of the plan as the
Capital Budget after legal advertising and public hearing requirements have been
met. The CIP also anticipates significant projects that are envisioned beyond the
initial five year period and identifies projects up to ten years out to allow for
appropriate long-term planning and financial projections.

The CIP represents a fiscally responsible approach in its level of reliance on long-
term financing for general County improvement projects. The CIP will utilize debt
financing as a funding source only after it has been determined that the County can
afford to service this debt and the associated operating expenses in subsequent
years.

The Debt Guidelines adopted to meet the fiscal challenges of financing capital
projects identified in the Capital Budget are as follows:

- The County’s tax-supported debt service will not exceed 10 percent of
general governmental revenues. Tax-supported debt service shall include
any debt service on general obligation bonds which are not self-supporting
from a user fee revenue stream (i.e. water and sewer fee). A self-supporting
revenue stream is defined as a revenue stream that provides coverage of all
debt service obligations without general fund support. Any long term
financing lease obligations which may be subject to annual appropriation by
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the County will also be included in calculations of tax-supported debt
service.

- The County’s tax-supported debt will not exceed 5 percent of the assessed
value of taxable real property in the County.

- The County’s tax-supported debt per capita will not exceed $2,300.

Major Initiatives and Accomplishments

In spite of the loss of jobs and tax revenues associated with the closure of
International Paper, Fitch, Moody’'s Investor Service, and Standard & Poor’s
affirmed the County’s excellent credit ratings of AA, Aa2, and AA- respectively in
June 2011. These ratings are one category below the highest rating level
achievable. Additionally, the County received the same short-term credit ratings
from all three rating agencies as organizations with AAA ratings, such as the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

Following the announcement of the International Paper mill closing, Isle of Wight
County began pursuing legislation to expand the Franklin/Southampton
Enterprise Zone, which was approved in late 2009. This legislation, which was
approved by the Virginia General Assembly in early 2011, allows Isle of Wight to
expand the zone to include 6.37 square miles in southern Isle of Wight, which
includes the closed International Paper mill site. The County has also designated
portions of the Shirley T. Holland Intermodal Park in the Enterprise Zone.

Awards

In recognition of its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year
ending June 30, 2011, a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting was awarded to Isle of Wight County by the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). The Certificate of
Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental
accounting and reporting, and its attainment represents a significant
accomplishment by a government and its management.
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An Award of Financial Reporting Achievement was also awarded to the Isle of
Wight County Department of Budget & Finance for its role in preparing the award-
winning CAFR.

Acknowledgement
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Suite 2000
1021 East Cary Street
Richmond, VA 23219-4023

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Isle of Wight, Virginia (the
County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the County’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for
Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns (the Specifications), issued by the Auditor of Public
Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards and Specifications require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Isle of Wight, Virginia as of June 30, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 30, 2012 on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited flability partnership,
the U.S. member firn of KPMG International Cooperative
("KPMG Intemational”), a Swiss entity.
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U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that Management’s Discussion and
Analysis on pages 3 through 12, the budgetary comparison information on pages 58 through 64,
and the schedules of funding progress on pages 65 and 66 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information listed as Other Supplemental Information in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
Other Supplemental Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Other Supplemental Information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The Introductory
Section and Statistical Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

KPMe P

November 30, 2012
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia
Management’s Discussion & Analysis

I'his section of the County of Isle of Wight, Virginia's (County) annual financial report presents our discussion
and analysis of the County’s {inancial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read it in
conjunction with the County’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The net assets of the County’s governmental activities were $31,755,151 at June 30, 2012, a 7% decreasc
from the previous fiscal year.

e In support of the County’s primary governmental activities, revenues were generated in the amount of
$63,635,740 of which 70% consisted of local taxes, 21% from the Commonwealth of Virginia, 4% from
Federal and other sources and 7% from charges for service. Of the total revenue, 21% is in
operating grants, Expenses from County operations were $66,041 ,570 or a 12% increase over the previous
year.

o The County’s General Fund reported revenues in excess of expenditures and other financing uses of
$ 953,655 resulting in an unassigned fund balance of $20,646,260. The revenucs in excess of expenditures
and other financing uses of is $4,538,262 less than the amounts budgeted for the year because of the
County's management of expenses and implementation cost containment measures throughout the fiscal
year.

o The County’s tax rate on real estate remained unchanged at $0.65 per $100 of assessed value. This is
currently the lowest tax rate in the Hampton Roads area.

o The County received an economic development grant in the amount of $4,000,000 from the State of
Virginia to bring new industry into the county.



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - Management's Discussion
and Analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, and required

Figure A-1, Required Components of

supplementary information. The basic financial stalements inciude '

the Couaty’s Aanual Financial Report

! o —
two statements presenting different views of the County:
Hanagement's Baslc Required
. W] 1 E 7 Fi lal Supplemontary
e The first two statements - are  gover nment-wide financial z:«;wam B mint ol P 5
statements that provide both long-term and short-term e oo
information about the County’s overall financial status. ?
¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that J, L
focus on individual parts of the government, reporting the
County’s operations in more detail than the government-wide .-~
statements. - P T >
o The governmental funds statement tells how general | —— __ o
government services were financed in the short-term as well as Hates
N . Guvernment-Wido Fund
what remains for future spending, Financlal Financlol o the
. - . Stal t 5 .
o Proprietary fund stalements offer short- and long-term financial fatemants R Pinancial
information about the activities the government operates like Stateuscats
businesses, such as public utilities.

o Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the
financial relationships in which the County acts solely as a
trustee or agen! for the benefit of others, to whom the resources

in question belong, such as Special Welfare.

Summary <‘—:_—"___‘———’> Detall

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required

parts of this-annual report are arranged and related to one another.

Figure A-2 summarizes the major
features of the County’s financial
slatements, including the portion of
the County government they cover
and the types of information they

contain.  The  remainder of
this overview section of
management’s  discussion  and

analysis explains the structure and
contents of each of the statements .

Figure A-2. Major Features of the County's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
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Government-wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the County using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. These statements provide both leng-term and shori-term information about the
County's overall financial status. Govemment-wide financia) reporting consists of two statements: the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is simllar to reporting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net assets and how they have changed. Net assets, the
difference between the County's assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the County’s financlal health or
position,

e Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the County, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as
changes in the County’s tax base,

The government-wide statements of the County include the following:

e Governmental activities - Most of the County's basic services are reported here including general
government, judicial administration, public safety, general services, education, health and welfare, parks and
recreation and economic and community development. Property taxes, other local taxes, and state and federal
grants finance most of these activities.

 Business-type activities - The County’s water and sewer services are reported as business-type activities.
These services are mostly supported by charges for services based on use.

e Component Units - The County includes two separate legal entities in its report - the Isle of Wight County
School Board and the Industrial Development Authority of the County of Isle of Wight. While legally
separate, the County is financially accountable and provides operating and capital funding to these component
units,

Fund Financial Statemerits

The fund financial statements provide additional information about the County's most significant funds. These
statements focus on the individual parts of the County government and groupings of related accounts that are used
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific purposes. Governments use fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. The fund financial statements are divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. These financial statements are
supplemented by accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and Required Supplemental Information,

e Governmental funds - Most of the County’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus
on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in und out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-ferm view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the County's services. Because this information does
not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional
information on the subsequent page, which explains the relationship (or dIfferences) between them.



e Proprietary Funds - Services for which the County charges customers a fee are generaily reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long and short-term
financial information. The County's enterprise fund (one type of proprietary fund) is used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, but the fund
financial statements provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. The County's only
enterprise. fund accounts for the operation of its water and sewer systems.

o Fiduciary Funds - The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government, TFiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s services. The accounting used
for fiduciary funds is similar to that of the proprictary funds. The County maintained Special Welfare and
School Activity Agency Funds in fiscal year 2012.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE
As described earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. At

the close of the fiseal year, the County's assets exceeded its labilities by $25,623,741 a 18% decrease from the
previous year as illustrated in Table A-1.

Table A-1
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tolals
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Current and other asscts $60,203,722 $66,593,728 § 7,012,307 $11,741,769 $67,216,029 $78,335497
Capilal assets 89,960,817 89,302,834 16,491,478 15416529 106,452,295 104,719,363

Total assets 150,164,539 155,896,562 23,503,785 27,158,298 173,668,324  183.054,860
Current liabilities 4,119,985 5,954,651 1,137,301 867,922 5,257,286 6,822,573
Long-term liabilities 114,289,403 115,780,930 28,498,173 29,285,115 142,787,576 145,066,045

Total liabilitics 118,409,388 121,735,581 29,635,474 30.153,037 148,044,862 151,888,618
Net assets

Invested in capilal asscts,

net of related debt 0.453,645 15,653,535 (6,129.102) (1.661,794) 3,324,543 13,991,741
Restricted 320,527 339,032 - - 320,527 339,032
Unrestricted 21,980,979 18,168.414 (2,587) (1,332,945) 21,978,392 16,835,469

Total net assets $31.755.151  $34.160,981  $(6,131,689) §(2,994.739) $25,623.462 831,166,242




Governmental Activities

e The County’s total revenues for governmental activities were $63,635,740 of which a significant portion,
70%, comes from local taxes.

e General Property taxes and other local taxes decreased 0.01% or $64,420.

e Opcrating grants consist of state and federal revenues received to offset the cost of various programs.
However, the reimbursements do not necessarily represent 100% of expenditures as illustrated in Table A-2.

e Operating grants increased 25% or $2,654,753.
Table A-2 presents the cost of each of the County’s functions as well as each function’s net cost (total cost less

fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what local tax dollars, as wel] as
state and federal revenues funded.

Table A-2
Cost of County Functions Tol Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2012 2011 % Change 2012 2011 % Change
General government administration  § 5,571,463 $ 5585577 -025% § 32,172 § 211,561  -B4.79%
Judicial administration 1,078,015 970,228 11L11% (114,724) (215,802) -46.84%
Public safety 9,999,240 7,454,652 34.13% (7.372,761) (5,287,715) 39.43%
General services 7,072,833 6,604,193 7.10% (6,388,779 (6,501,258) -1.73%
Health and welfare 4,444,284 4,884,843 -9.02% (1,907.929) (2,029,045) -5.97%
Education 24,794,008 25,419,456 -2.46% (24,794.008) (25,419.456) -2.46%
Parks, recreation and cultural 2,979,591 2,797,390 6.51% (2,393,851) (2,361,087) 1.39%
Community development 5,995,359 1,931,593 210.38% (1,700,311) (1,147957) 48.12%
Nondepartmental 1,314,563 1,429,542 -8.04% (1,314,563) (1,429,542) -8.04%
Interest on long-lerm debl 2,792,214 2,080,083 34.24% (2,222,899) (2,080,083) 6.87%
Total expenses $ 66,041,570 $ 59,157,557 11.64% § (48,177,653) $(46,260,384) 4.14%

e The cost of all governmental activities this year was $66,041,570 a 12% increase from the previous year.
The increase in 2012 was primarily driven by the County’s payment of economic incentives lo attract new
business and increases in public safety and education costs.

e ECducation continues to be one of the County’s highest priorities and commitments representing 38% of total
costs and 54% of total net costs.

e The cost of debt service increased $712,131 (34%) from the prior fiscal year.
Business-type Activities

Revenues of the County's business-type activities for the operation of water and sewer systems increased by 30%
due 1o an acquisition of a private water company related connection charges. Current year expenses increased by 7
%. A significant portion of the operating expenses, 50%, were altributable to the purchase of an annual fixed rate
charge for water availability from a neighboring local government and capital contributions to the Western
Tidewater Authority.

Cost of Publie Utilities Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2012 2011 % Change 2012 2011 % Change
Public Utilities $7.439.824  $6,999.024 6.30% $3,168,041 $3.736,336 -15.21%




In September 2009, the City of Suffolk and the County entered into revised agreement with Western Tidewater
Water Authority (WTWA) which supersedes the 2006 agreement. The 2009 Regional Water Agreement provides
for the construction of the Authority's Western Branch pipeline to convey raw water purchased under the Norfolk
agreement as well as “Phase 3” expansion and subsequent “Phase 4" expansion of the Water Plant.

The County did not make any transfers from its Capital Projects Fund to support the operations of the Public
Utilities fund which has been the practice in prior fiscal years. However, the operations of the water and sewer
systems are expected to continue to grow and it is the intent of the County to establish a repayment schedule to
the Governmental Funds for previous operating transfers.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific purposes and to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The primary purpose of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resourcos. This information assists in assessing the
County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $55,887,311, of which 37% or
$20,646,260 is unassigned.

e General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the unassigned fund balance was $20,646,260. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. At June
30, 2012, the unassigned fund balance represented approximately 36% of the total General Fund expenditures,

e Capital projects fund. The capital projects fund accounts for all construction projects of general public
improvements, excluding capital projects related to business-type activities, which are accounted for in their
respective fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was $34,072,317, a decrease of
$5,129,303 or 13%. The decrease represents the amount of current year capital expenditures.

e Proprietary fund. The County’s proprietary fund consists of its water and sewer operations and provides the
same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail, The net
assets of the proprietary fund at the end of the current fiscal year were $(6,131,689), of which $(6,129,102) is
representative of capital assets net of related debt and $(2,587) is unrestricted (Exhibit A-S) at June 30, 2012,

e Non-Major Governmental Funds. The County accounts for other programs and services in different funds.
These funds include the Department of Social Services, Comprehensive Services, E-911 Funds,
Community Development Block Grant Funds, Section 8, Asset Forfeilure, the County Fair and the Museum
Fund. AtJune 30, 2012, the combined fund balances were $386,338.



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The County's annual budget is prepared on an operating basis and includes estimated revenues and annual

appropriations for operations. Excluding transfers between funds and debt service costs, actual expendltures were
$3,024,420 below final budget amounts.

On the other hand, resources available, excluding bond proceeds, were $870,318 below the final budgeted
amount. The decrease in the available resources was the result of a $3,700,000 decrease in the collection of
personal property taxes compared 1o the final budgeted amount, a 9% decreasc. Total taxes were 78% of the
General Fund budget. Revenue from property taxes increased by .5% over the prior fiscal year.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2012, the County had invested $106,452,295, net of accumulated depreciation, in a broad
range of capital assets, including land, equipment, buildings, and vehicles. (See Table A-3)

Annually, the Board of Supervisors adopts a five (5) year Capital Improvement Plan with a five (5) year horizon.
The capital improvement plan begins with a review of requests from departments, agencies and other
organizations by a sub-committee, comprised of three (3) members from the Planning Commission and two (2)
members from the Board of Supervisors. The funding stream, consisting of operating revenues, reserves and
bonded debt is also reviewed in connection with the requests. The proposed plan is then presented to the Planning
Commission for discussion and review and subsequently presented to the Board of Supervisors for adoption.
More detailed information on the county’s capital assets are presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Table A-3 Governmental Activitics Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government % Change
2012 2014 2012 2011 2012 2011
Nondeprecinble assets
Land $13,139,504 $12,743.908 § 216840 3 181,240 $ 13,356,344 $§ 12,925,148 3.34%
Inlangibles 4,326,512 4,326,512 - - 4,326,512 4,326,512 0.00%
Construction in progress 4,359,674 1,984,087 1,177,737 964,823 5,537,411 2948910 87.78%
Tolal nondepreciable assels 21,825,690 19,054,507 1,394,577 1,146,063 23,220,267 20,200,570 14.95%

Depreciable assets

Land improvements 7,971,776 7,905,296 13,911,547 12,324,903 21,883,323 20,230,199 8.17%
Buildings 73,307,998 73,294,607 11,478,835 11,337,334 84,786,833 84,631,941 0.18%
Equipment 4,427,987 4,368,954 512,287 512,287 4,940,274 4,881,241 1.21%
Vehicles 2,984,236 3,320,348 304912 289,129 3,289,148 3,609,477 -8.87%
Total deprecinble assets 88,691,997 88,889,205 26,207,581 24,463,653 114,899,578 113,352,858 1.36%
Total accumulated depreciation  (20,556,870)  (18,640,878) (11,110,680) (10,193,187) (31,667,550) (28,834,065) 9.83%
Net capital assets $89,960,817 $89,302,834 516,491,478 3 15416,529 $106452,295 § 104,719,363 1.65%

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

o Expansion of water treatment and delivery infrastructure through participation with the Western Tidewater
Water Authotity

A new courts/clerk building - completed.

A new fire station for the Smithfield Volunteer Fire Department - completed.

Construction of the Isle of Wight County Rescue Building

A new County Animal Shelter — completed

Acquisition of a private of water system

Construction of a new middle school



Long-Term Liabilities

At year-end the County had $141,492,035.in bonds, loans, notes, and other long-term debt outstanding and
$1,295,541 in compensated absences as shown in Table A-4. The Commonwealth of Virginia limits the amount
of debt outstanding to 10% of the localities assessed value of real property. At June 30, 2012, the County’s debt
ratio to assessed value was approximately 2% demonstrating the County’s conservative debt borrowing policy
and management approach. More detailed information about the County’s debt is presented in the notes to the
financial statements.

Table A-4 Govemimental Activities B Type Activities Total Prinary Government % Change
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
General Obligation Bonds
Serios of 2003 5 5,615,000 3 5025000 $ - § . - § 5025000 § 5,625,000 0%
Seres of 2005 - - 8519281 92173777 8,519,281 9173777 ~7%
Series B of 2008 21,780,057 21,780,000 3,219,943 3,220,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 0%
Series A of 2010 283453 283453 - - 283,153 283453 0%
Series B of 2010 - - 7,685,000 7,085,000 7,685,000 7,685,000 0%
Senes C of 2010 13,530,000 13,530,000 - - 13,530,000 13,530,000 0%
Series D of 2010 5.071.935 5,103,477 28184006 2835979 7.890,400 7939456 0%
Senes A of 2011 4824978 4,825,000 - - 4824978 4,825,000 0%
Seres B of 2011 - - 6,460,000 0,460,000 6,460,000 6,460,000 0%
Bonds fur Schools
Senes ol 2003 - 695,000 - - - 695,000 -100%
Series of 2004 17,330,000 17,330,000 - - 17,330,000 17.330,000 0%
Series o’ 2005 1,940,719 2,229,996 - - 1,940,719 22294996 ~13%
Scries A of 2010 701,547 701,547 - - 701,547 701,547 0%
Senes D of 2010 4,179,600 4,205,544 - - 4,179,600 4,205,544 0%
Series A of 2011 12,805,022 12,805,000 - - 12,805,022 12,805,000 0%
Senes C of 201 1 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 7,500,000 0%
VPSA 2011 7,500,000 7,500000 - - 7,500,000 7.500,000 0%
Literary Loans
Scres of 1999 2,000,000 2,250,000 - - 2,000,000 2.250,000 -11%
Notes Payable
Pruden VPSA Note - 8.578 - - - 8,578 -100%
Total outs tanding bonds 105072310 106,372,595 28,702,690 29,374,756 133,775.000 135,747 351 -1.45%
Installment purchase agreements -
PACE 4320512 4,326.512 - - 4,326,512 4,326,512 0.00%
Note payable 60,000 - 60,000
Compensated absences 1,234,023 1,159.903 61,518 54,797 1,295,541 1,214,700 0.66%
Landfill olosuie costs 1,893,367 1,596,077 - - 1,893,307 1,596,077 18.63%
Net OPEB obligations 548,760 385,736 22632 14,671 571,398 400407 42.70%
Deferred gams(losses) on
refundings (327.946) (340,965) (853.936) (932,258) (1,181,882) (1,273.223) -
Deterred charges obligations -
bond discounts (149.019) (161417 (19235) (25,521) (168,254) (186,938) -
Deferred charges obhyations -
bond premiums 1691390 1,932310 524,504 705,844 2215894 2,638,154 -16.01%
Taotal long-tevm debr $ 114289403 S 115.270,751 § 28498173 $  129,192289 § 142,787.576  $ 144463040 25.53%
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

«  The County’s per capita personal income, as of the latest data available, was $29,594.

«  All tax rates remained unchanged including the Real Estate Tax Rate of $0.65 per $100 of assessed value.

«  Revenues generated from all local sources decreased by approximately 21% primarily from the decreased
in bond proceeds of $14,000,000 .

 Increased funding for schools of approximately 5%.

«  Decrease in costs for Virginia Retirement System of approximately 2%.

These indicators were taken into account when adopting the general operating and capital budget for fiscal year

2012-13. Amounts available for appropriation in the general operating budget are $94,460,625. The operating

budget decreased approximately 7%, primarily driven by decreases in funding for schools, in costs for Virginia

Retirement System and decreases in revenues generated from all local sources. The County is experiencing a

reduction in *growth” related revenues. The trend in the real estate and new construction market is apparent with

the projected reduction in building permits and real estate transfers.

OTHER FACTORS TO CONSIDER

The County is committed to using its resources wisely and to delivering quality services to its citizens. The
County continually strives to enhance the cost-effectiveness of its operations and the services it provides without

sacrificing quality.

The Board of Supervisors revised strategic plan to incorporates a Values Statement, Mission Statement and four
primary strategic directions as follows:

Isle of Wight Values Statement

To sustain Isle of Wight County’s stature as a COMMUNITY OF CHOICE for people, families, and businesses
alike while preserving and protecting our rural heritage, our bountiful mix of natural resources and our natural
beauty for present and future generations.

Isle of Wight County Mission Statement

As a COMMUNITY OF CHOICE, Isle of Wight County is committed to providing an excellent quality of life for
all citizens through the provision of fiscally responsible services and programs.

Isle of Wight County Slogan
A COMMUNITY OF CHOICE commilted to excellence.
Isle of Wight County’s Strategic Direction/Agenda 2011-2012
1. Managing growth and change.

2. Economic well-being and quality of life.

L

Effective governance and community partnerships.

4. Funding the future.

11



Isle of Wight County Schools

Isle of Wight County Schools is committed to preparing our students for excellence in the 21st century by
ensuring that they are provided with the knowledge and skills needed to be successful in pursuit of college.
careers and citizenship in the global world community. Annually, IWCS educates more than 5,500 students ina
comprehensive Pre-Kindergarten through twelfth grade instructional program; consisting of five elementary, two
middle and two high schools. All IWC schools are fully accredited by the Virginia Department of Education and
by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, Over 87% of IWCS’ Class of 2012 graduated “on-time”
with their four-year cohort group and 52% of these students met stringent state requirements to earn an Advanced
Studies Diploma.

With the opening of the 2012-2013 school year, Isle of Wight County Schools launched the i-SLE 21 initiative
(Initiatlve for Student Learning and Engagement in the 21st Century). The primary goals of this initiative
include:

- Developing a culture that works collaboratively to utilize a variety of data sources and knowledge of best
educational practices to guide our instructional decision-making

- Extend the rigor of daily classroom instruction and assessment to incorporate critical thinking and
problem-solving skills and encourage creativity

- Increase opportunitics for students to meaningfully engage in the learning process and utilize technology
to enhance and expand learning opportunities.

As part of i-SLE21, all IWCS high school students have been issued an iPad for educational use,24/7, both in and
outside of the classroom. The intent of this 1-1 technology initiative is to help level the educational playing ficld
by making technology resources available to all IWCS high school students so that the same learning
opportunities are accessible to them beyond the confines of the traditional school walls and daily classroom
schedule. IWCS is committed to extending the i-SLE21 initiative to middle and elementary students in the
coming years. Wise use of financial resources coupled with extensive professional development for teachers will

prove the keys to achieving Isle of Wight County School’s to prepare our students for excellence in the 21st
century.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the County’s Department of
Budget and Finance at 757-365-6273.
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Eahibit A1
Cuunity of isle af Wight, Virginla

Sratement of Net Assets

June 30, 20]2
Discretely Presented
Primary Goverpment Component Units
i Industrig)
Govornmental Business-Type School Development
Assely Aclivities Activitics Totul Board Authorlty
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 24,049,081 ¥ 516,564 3 24,565,945 3 7.858,502 $ 991,128
Restricted ensh and cash equivalents 28,877,541 5,733,443 34,610,984 - -
Investments 1,933,996 1,933,996 - -
Recelvables - net 1,005,146 §95.938 1,601,084 82,614 317,340
Interal balances 71,142 (71.142) . . .
Bue from component unlt 2,112,389 2,112,38¢ - -
Due froin other governments 1.163,263 . 1,163,263 1,278,018 -
Inventory 40,215 74,383 114,598 50,114 .
Deposits . . - - 100,000
Capital lease receivable - - - - 167,348
Deferred bond issuance cosls 95(),949 162,821 1,113,770 - -
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 21,825,690 1,394,577 23,220,267 1,619,726 11,040,453
Depreciable - net 68,135,127 15,096,901 83,232,028 23,144,181 51,150
Total assets 150,164,539  23.503,785  173.668,324 36,033,135  12,667.419
Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,585,303 681,813 2.267,116 1,197,293 171
Accrued liabilitios 315.181 . 315,181 4,683,327 -
Due to primary government - - - 2,112,389 -
Due to other governments 191 - - - -
Custoiner deposits paynble . 168,551 168,551 - 1,000
Accrued interest payable 1,652,636 286,937 1,939,573 - -
Unearned revenues 366,674 - 566,674 94,048 -
Long-term abligations:
Due within one year 3,297,359 8,664,193 11,961,554 58,354 28,742
Due in more than one year 110,992,044 19,833,978 130,826,022 3,022,048 120,158
Total liabibities 118,409.388 29,635,474 148,044,862 11.167.499 150.071
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 9,453,645  (6,129,102) 3,324,543 26,763.907 11,091,603
Restricted:
Other 320,527 - 320,527 - -
Unrestricted 21,980.979 (2.587) 21,978,392 (1.898.231) 1,425,745
Total net assets § 31,755,151 $ (6,131,689) $ 25,623,462 $24.865,656 $12,5 l7,348_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit A-3
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2012
Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
Assets General Projects Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents $18,544,387 § 5,323,349 § 181,345 §$24,049,081
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 28,780,367 07,174 28,877,541
Investments 1,933,996 - - 1,933,996
Receivables - net of allowance
for uncollectibles:
Taxes 639,362 - - 639,362
Accounts 51,704 - 87,900 139,604
Motes 148,900 - 77,280 226,180
Due from other funds 201,594 71,142 - 272,736
Due from component unit 2,112,389 - - 2,112,389
Due from other governments 951,756 - 211,507 1,163,263
Inventory - - 40,215 40,215
Total assets $ 24,584,088 $34,174,858 § 695,421 § 59,454,367
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,391,899 § 102,541 § 90,862 § 1,585,302
Accrued expenses 309,604 - 5,577 315,181
Due to other funds - - 201,594 201,594
Due 1o other governments 191 - - 191
Deferred revenues 887,064 - 11,050 808,114
Unearned reventes 566,674 - - 566,674
Total liabilitics 3,155,432 102,541 309.083 3,567,056
Fund Balances
Fund balances
Nonspendable 120,158 - 40,215 160,373
Restricted 29,650 28,750,458 290,877 29,070,985
Assigned 632,588 5,321,859 55,246 6,009,693
Unassigned 20,646,260 - - 20,646,260
Total fund balances 21,428,656 34,072,317 386,338 55,887,311
Total liabilities and fund balances $24,584,088 $34,174,858 § 695.421 $ 59,454,367 ,
{(Continued)

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements
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Exhibit A-3
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds' Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2012

"Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 55,887,311

Amount reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Nondepreciable capital assets 21,825,690
Depreciable capital assets 88,691,997
Accumulated depreciation (20,556,870)
Depreciable capital assets,net 68,135,127

Revenues not collected soon enough to pay for
current-period expenditures, 898,113

Long-term obligations, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and are not reported in the funds,

Bonds, notes, loans and PACE obligations (110,613,247)
Net OPEB obligation (548,766)
Compensated absences (1,234,023)
Landfill closure costs (1,893,367)
Accrued interest payable (1,652,636)

Deferred bond issuance costs is an asset reported in the governmental
activities and is not a a financial resource and therefore not reported

in the funds 950,949
Total net assets - governmental activities $ 31,755,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Exhibit A~d
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statentent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governniental Funds

Yeur Ended June 30, 2012

MNonmajor Total
Capital Governmental  Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds
Revenues
General property taxes § 38,024,532 § -3 - § 33,024,532
Other local taxes 6,200,597 . 100,486 6,301,083
Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses 380,302 - - 380.302
Fines and forfeltures 85,598 . - 85,598
Revenues from use of inoney and property 085,342 81,499 - 1,066,841
Charges Tor services 1,466,974 - 153,922 1,620.890
Miscellaneous 466,211 . $7,910 524,121
Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth of Virginia 12.015,579 - 1,161,083 13,176,662
Federal 804,391 109,489 1,501,437 2,415,317
Total revenues 60,429,526 190,988 2,974,838 63.595,352
¥xpenditures
General government adminisiration 4.814,890 - - 4,814,890
Judicial administration 1,058,580 - - 1,058,580
Public safety 7.672,354 - 083,585 8,655,939
General services 6,541,709 - - 6,541,709
Health and welfare 951,649 - 3,569,080 4,520,729
Education 24,136,237 - - 24,136,237
Parks, recreation and cultural 2,347,963 - 285,643 2,633,606
Community development 5,995,165 - 551 5,995,716
Nondepartmental 1,314,563 - - 1,314,563
Capital outlay - 5,035,723 - 5.033,723
Debt service:
Principal retirement 31,516 - . 31,516
Interest and other charges 2.784.497 - - 2,784,497
Bond issuance costs - 284,568 - 284,568
Total expenditures 57,649,123 5.320,291 4,838,859 67.808,273
Excess (deficlency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,780,403 (5,129,303) ¢ 1,864,0?,1) (4,212,921)
Otlier financing sourees (uses)
Transfers In - . 1,826,748 1,826,748
Transfers out (1,826,748) - - (1,826,748)
Total other financing sources (uses), net (1,826,748) - 1,826,748 -
Net change in fund balance 953,653 (5,129,303) (37,273) (4,212.921)
Fund balances - beginning of year 20,475,001 39,201,620 423,611 60,100,232
Fund balances - end of year $ 21.428,656 $ 34,072,317 $ 386,338 § 55.887311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds' Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

Exhibit A-4

Year Ended June 30,2012

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds

Amount reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statemont of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreociation expense. Transfers
of capital assets to the school board are recorded as additional
expenses related to education,

Capital outlay

Joint activity - transfer of capital assets, net
Depreciation expense

Sale of property

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Repayinent of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
Repayment of debt principal
Amortization of bond premuims
Amortization of bond discounts
Amortization of deferred loss on refunding

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources arc not reported as revenues in the funds.

Some expenses reporied in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences, do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as cxpenditures in governmental funds.

Increase in bond issuance costs
Increase in landfill closure costs
Increase in compensated absences
Increase in accrued interest
Increase in net OPEB obligation

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$ (4,212,921)

4,214,223
(1,010,246)
(2,479,970)

(66,024)

1,300,285
240,920
(12,398)
(13,019)

106,412

210,927
(297,290)

(74,120)
(149,579)

{163,030)

$ (2,405,830)



. ' Exhibit A-5
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statements of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund

June 30, 2012
Public Utilities
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 516,864
Receivables - net of allowance of $70,762 505,938
Inventories 74,383
Total current assets 1,187,185
Noneurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,733,443
Deferred bond issuance costs 162,821
Capilal assets:
Nondepreciable 1,394,577
Depreciable - net 15,096,901
Total noneurrent assefs 22,387,742
Total assets 23,574,927
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 681,813
Accrued interest payable 286,937
Customer deposits payable 168,551
Due to other funds 71,142
General obligation bonds payable 8,646,043
Notes payablc 12,000
Compensated absences 6,152
Total current liabilities 0,872,638
Noncurrent liabilities
General obligation bonds payable 19,707,980
Notes payable 48,000
Compensated absences 55,366
Net OPEB obligation 22,632
Total noncurrent liabilities 19,833,978
Total liabilities 29,706,616
Net Assets
Invested in capital asscts - net of related debt (6,129,102)
Unrestricted (2,587)
Total net assets 3 (6,131,689)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Exhibit A-6

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Fund

Year Ended June 30,2012

Operating revenues
Charges for services

Operating expenses
Current:

Personnel services

Fringe benefits

Contractual services

Purchusos

Other charges

Depreciation

Total operating expenscs

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenscs)
Interest income
Interost and fiscal charges
Amortization of deferred charges
Total nonoperating expenscs, net
Losses before contributions
Capital contributions - connection focs
Total contributions
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 2.856,747

611,098
161,656
268,869
4,055,512
349,845
934,495
6,381,475

(3.524,728)
27,205
(1,058,349)

3,886
(1,027,258)

(4,551,986)

1,415,036

(3,136,950)
(2,994,739)

$ (6,131,689)



County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statements of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

Exhibit A-7

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash flows from gperating activities
Reeeived from customers and users
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employces

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities

Public Utilitigs

% 2,632,557
(4,467,525)
(758.072)

{2,593,040)

Due to other funds (743,700)
Customer deposits 15,536
Net cash used in non-capital and related financing activities (728.164)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

(2.009.442)

Capital contributions 1,415,036
Proceeds from debt issued 60,000
Principal payments on bonds (672,0606)
Bond issuance costs (71,142)
Interest paid on notes and bonds payable (1,036,741)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest recieved 27,205

Net cash provided by investing activities 27,205
Change in cash and cash equivalents (3,608,354)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 11,858,661

Cash and cash cquivalents - end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities

(2.314,355)

$ 6,250,307

Operating loss (3,524,728)
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Depreciation 934,495
Change in:
Accounts receivable (224,190)
Inventories (25,532)
Accounts payable 232,233
Compensated absences 6,721
Other post-emplayment benefits payable 7,961
Net cash ussd in cperating activities § (2.593,040)

The accompanying noies are an Integral par of these financial statements.
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Exhibit A-8
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2012
Agency Funds
Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents $ 320,534
Liabilities
Amounts held for social services clignts 3 7,842
Amounts held for others 312,692
Total liabilities $ 320,534

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2012

1.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The County of Isle of Wight, Virginia (the County) is a municipal corporation governed by anelected five
member Board of Supervisors. The County provides a full range of services for its citizens. These services
include police and fire protection, general services, community development, sanitation- services,
recreational activities, cultural events, education, and social services.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with the U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (the
GASB)and the specifications promulgated by the Auditor of Public Accounts (APA) of the Commonwealth
of Virginia. The County’s more significant accounting policies are described herein.

A,

Financial Reporting Entity

The basic criterion for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution,
commission, public authority, or other governmental organization should be included in the Primary
Government’s reporting entity for the basic financial statements is financial accountability. Financial
accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization’s governing body
and the ability of the Primary Government to impose its will on the organization or if there is a
financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the
Primary Government should be included in its reporting entity. These financial statements present the
County (the Primary Government) and its component units. Each discretely presented component
unit is reported in a separate column in the basic financial statements to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the government.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Isle of Wight County Public School Board (School Board) members are elected by the citizens of
the County of Isle of Wight. The School Board is responsible for the operations of the County’s
School System within the County boundaries. The School Board is fiscally dependent on the County.
The County has the ability to approve its budget and any amendments. The primary funding source
for the School System is the General Fund of the County. The School Board does not issue a separate
financial report. The financial statements of the School Board are presented as a discretely presented
component of the County financial statements.

The Industrial Development Authority of Isle of Wight County (IDA) was created by the Board of
Supervisors and is responsible for industrial and commercial development in the County. The IDA
consists of seven members appointed by the primary government’s Board of Supervisors. The IDA
holds certain real property being developed into an industrial park. The land was purchased by the
County and conveyed to the IDA. The IDA does not issue a separate financial report. The financial
statements of the IDA are presented as a discretely presented component of the County financial
statements.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2012

B.

Financial Reporting Model and Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide Statement of Net Assets and
Statement of Activities report the overall financial activity of the County, excluding fiduciary
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities of the
County. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
County. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
the different business-type aclivities of the County and for each function of the County’s
governmental activities. Direct cxpenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by
the.programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which cach
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General — This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the County, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived
primarily from property and other local taxes, statc and federal distributions, licenses, permits,
charges for service, and interest income. The services which are administered by the County
and accounted for in the General Fund include, among others, County Board, Finance,
Administration, Public Safety, and Public Works.

Capital Projects — Accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

The County reports one major proprietary fund, the Enterprise Public Utilities Fund, which provides
water and sewer services for the County.

Additionally, the County reports an Agency Fund, which is custodial and accounts for amounts held
for special assessment districts.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30,2012

C.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, except for agency funds
which have no measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. Nonexchange
transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenues from property taxes is recognized in the period for which the levy is Intended to
finance, which is the year in which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and other contributions
are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the yecar when the
resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements,
in which the County must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the County on a reimbursement basis.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenucs are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For ‘this purpese, the County
considers revenues, except for property taxes, to be available if they are collected within 45 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues for property taxes are considered to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded
when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences are recorded only when
payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources. Significant revenue sources which are susceptible to accrual include property
taxes, miscellaneous taxes, charges for services, grants, and investment income. All other revenue
sources including fines and forfeitures, inspection fees, and recreation fees are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The County also has the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for its business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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D.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County's and School Board’s cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair
value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Deposit and investment
instruments include certificates of deposit, savings accounts, money market funds, Virginia State
Non-Arbitrage Program, bankers' acceptances, the Commonwealth Local Government Investment
Paol (LGIP) and United States (U.S.) government securities. Investments are generally on deposit
with banks and savings and loan institutions and are collateralized under the provisions of the
Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.1-359 et seq. Securities are held in safekeeping
by the respective financial institutions. Investment income is reported in the same fund that reports
the investment.

Investments

Investments for the Primary Government, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value
based upon quoted market prices.

Property Taxes

All property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The County calculates
its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data, specific account analysis and
management's judgment. An allowance is also provided for accounts receivable of the Public
Utilities Fund based on historical data. At June 30, 2012, the allowance for the General Fund was
$1,157,684.

The County bills and collects taxes and recognizes such taxes as revenues, when measurable and
available in the General Fund and for the period in which they are levied for, in the Governmental and
Business-Type activities. Property taxes, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts, not collected
within 60 days after year cnd, are reflected as deferred revenues in the governmental fund financial
statements. Taxes are budgeted and billed to fund operations occurring within the year they are
required to be paid. Accordingly, payments received by June 30 with a December 5 due date are
intended o fund the operations of the next fiscal year and are recorded as deferred revenues at June
30. The County bills and collects its own property taxes.

Real property Personal property
Levy date July 1 January 1
Due date and collection date June 5/December 5 December 5
Licn date for delinquent taxes January 1 January 1

While the assessed value of real estate for the County’s ten largest taxpayers comprises 6.85% of the
County’s real estate tax base, credit risk with respect to real estate taxes receivable is limited due to
the large number of property owners comprising the County’s total tax base.
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The Personal Property Tax Relief Act of 1998 (PPTRA) provided for the Commonwealth to
reimburse a portion ‘of the personal property tax levied on the first $20,000 of personal use cars,
motorcycles and trucks. During the 2005 Special Session I, the Virginia General Assembly passes
Senate Bill 5005. The bill provides for the Commonwealth to reimburse a portion of the tangible
personal property tax levied bases on a fixed relief amount. The fixed relief amount was capped at
$950,000,000 in total for all localities with the County's share capped at $5,115,890, which the
County received during the year ended June 30, 2012. The Commonwealth requires localities to
record the revenue from PPTRA as reccived from other governments, nol as property laxes.

Internal and Intra-entity Activity

The County has the following types of interfund transactions:

Loans — Interfund loan amounts are provided with a requirement for repayment. Interfund loans are
reported as interfund receivables (i.e. due from other funds) in lender funds and interfund payables
(i.e. due to other funds) in borrower funds.

Services provided and used — Sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price
approximate their external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used arc reported as
revenues in seller funds and expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are
reported as interfund receivables and payables in the fund balance sheets or fund statements of net
assets.

Reimbursements — Repayments are from the funds responsible for particular expenditures or
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them. Reimburseinents are reported as expendltures in the
reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Transfers — Transfers are flows of assets (such as cash or goods) without equivalent flows of assets in
return and without a requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as
other financing uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the funds
receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Inventory

Inventory consists of materials and supplies held for future use and is stated at cost using the first-in,
first-out method. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed
rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and land improvements, buildings and building improvements, equipment,
vehicles and intangibles assets. Any asset or group of assets acquired by the County are considered
capital assets if they have an estimated useful life in excess of two years and an acquisition cost (or
fair market value when received) of at least $5,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost (or
estimated historical cost) if constructed or purchased. Donated capital assets are recorded at fair
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market value at the date of donation. The County does not have any infrastructure in its capital assets
since roads, streets, bridges and similar assets within its boundarles are the property of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Accumulated depreciation and amortization are reported as reductions
of capital assets. At June 30, 2012, the recorded intangibles have lives into perpetuity and, therefore,
are not amortized.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs not adding to the value of thc asset or materially
exiending asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as
part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. There was no capitalized interest for the year
ended June 30, 2012.

Capital assets of the Primary Government, as well as the component units, are depreciated over their
estimated uscful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years
Buildings and building improvements 50
Land improvements 20
Equipment 5-15
Vehicles 5-8

J.  Compensated Absences

County and School Board employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts as
services are provided. They may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation and sick
leave earned and, upon retirement, termination or death, may be compensated for certain amounts at
their current rates of pay at the time of separation. The liability for compensated absences reported in
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements has been calculated using the vesting
method, which includes leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive
termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to
receive such payments upon termination. The liability for compensatcd absences is reported in the
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements. Compensated absences are typically liquidated by the County’s General Fund for
governmental activities, Public Utilities Fund for business-type activitics and the Operating Fund for
the School Board.

K. Bond Premiums, Discounts, Issuance Costs and Deferred Loss on Refunding
In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as

well as issuance costs and losses on refunding, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium
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or discount and deferred loss on refunding. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in three
components as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — This consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted — This consists of net assets that are legally restricted by outside parties or by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (e.g. customers’ deposits, unexpended
bond proceeds). When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally
it is the County’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are
needed.

Unrestricted — This consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications
that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balances are
reported in five components as follows:

Nonspendable — This component includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
(a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — This component consists of amounts that have constraints placed on them either
externally by third-parties (e.g. creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments) or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — This component consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the County’s highest level of decision making
authority, the County’s Board of Supervisor, which is by board resolutions. Those committed
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the County removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same type of action (county resolutions) it employed previously to
commit those amounts.
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Assigned — This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The authority for assigning
fund balance is expressed by the Board of Supervisors.

Unassigned — This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, committed or
assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. The General Fund is the only fund that
reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. Other governmental funds besides the
General Fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance amount.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) as
they are needed. When unrestricted resources (committed, assigned and unassigned) arc available
for use it is the County’s policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then
unassigned as they are needed.

N. Connection Fees

Connection fees accounted for in the Public Utilities Fund represents charges to new customers for
their fair share of the capital cost of the system already in place and/or the cost of increasing the
capacity of the system to meet the additional demand created by the connection of new customers.

0. Unbilled Utility Receivables

Estimated water sales for water usage prior to year-end that are unbilled are recognized as current
year revenues and are included in utility receivables.

P. [Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/cxpenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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2.

Deposits and Investments

Cas'h a.nd invF:stments are held separately and in pools by several of the County’s funds. The County
maintains various cash and investment pools that are available for use by all funds. Income from pooled

investments is allocated to the funds based on their proportional share of their investment balance.

A summary of deposits and investments held by the Primary Government at June 30,2012 is as follows:

Deposits
Demand deposits $ 16,015,673
Cash on hand 2,715
Investments
LGIP 8,547,557
Zero coupon bond 1,933,996
Money market funds 34,610,984
Total deposits and investments $ 61,110,925
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,565,945
Restricted cash 34,610,984
Investments 1,933.996
Total deposits and investments $ 61,110,925

Deposits

All cash of the Primary Government and discretely presented component units is maintained in
accounts collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (ACT), a
multiple financial institution collateral pool, Section 2.2-4400 et. Scq. of the Code of Virginia or
covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Under the Act, financial
institutions, holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by FDIC must pledge collateral
in the amount of 50% of excess deposits to a collateral pool in the name of the State Treasury Board,
while savings and loan institutions are required to collateralize 100% of deposits in excess of FDIC
limits. The State Treasury Board can assess additional collateral from participating financial
institutions to cover collateral shortfalls in the event of default and is responsible for monitoring
compliance with the collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act and for notifying local
governments of compliance by financial institutions. All funds, unless otherwise classified as
restricted, are deposited into pooled bank accounts; the major account defined as the General Fund
concentration account. As disbursements are made from the payroll, budget, and social services bank
accounts, funds from the general fund concentration account are automatically transferred to those
bank accounts to cover those disbursements on a daily basis. All cash classified as restricted is related
to grantor or debtor requirements.

Investment Policy

In accordance with the Code of Virginia and other applicable law and regulations, the County’s
investment policy (Policy) permits investments in obligations of the U.S. government, an agency
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thereof, or government sponsored corporations; high quality commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances; repurchasc agreements and certificates of deposit of Virginia banks and savings
institutions; and the LGIP, a 2a-7 like pool, and State Non-Arbitrage Program. The maximum
percentage of the portfolio permitted in commercial paper is 35% and not more than 5% can be in
commercial paper issued by one corporation. The LGIP is an externally managed investment pool
that is not registered with the Sccurities Exchange Commission but is managed as a “2a-7 like pool.”
Pursuant to the Code of Virginia, the Treasury Board of the Commonwealth sponsors the LGIP and
has delegated certain functions to the State Treasurer. The LGIP reports to the Treasury Board at their
regularly scheduled monthly meetings. The LGIP values portfolio securities by the amortized cost
method and on a monthly basis this valuation is compared to current market to monitor any variance.

The fair value of the County’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

C. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the County will not recover their investments due to the inability of the
counterparty to fulfill its obligation. As required by state statute, the Policy requires commercial
paper have a debt rating of no less than *A-1" (or its equivalent) from at least two of the following:
Moody’s, Duff and Phelps, Inc., Standard & Poor’s, and Eitch Investors' Service. Negotiable
Certificates of Deposit and bank deposit notes maturing in less than one year must have a short-term

debt rating of at least "A-1" by Standard and Poor's and "P-1" by Moody's Investor Services.

The Primary Government’s investments are rated as follows:

AAA AA Total
LGIP $ 8,547,557 § - $ 8,547,557
Zero coupon bond - 1,933,996 1,933,996
Money market funds 34,610,983 - 34,610,983

§ 43,158,540 § 1.933.996 & 45,092,536

D. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will decrease as a result of an increase in
interest rates. As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates,
the Policy limits the investment of operating funds to investments with a stated maturity of no more
than two years from the date of purchase. The average maturity of the operating fund investment
portfolio may not exceed 12 months. Proceeds from the sale of bonds must be invested in
compliance with the specific requirements of the bond covenants and may be invested in securities

with longer maturities.
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The Primary Government had the following investments and maturities:

Original investment maturity (in years)

Fair Value Less than 1 FY 2039
LGIP b 8,547,557 § 8,547,557 5 -
Zero coupon bond 1,933,996 - 1,933,996
Money market funds 34,610,983 34,610,983 -

$ 45,092,536 $ 43,158,540 $ 1,933,996

3. Due From Other Governments

The County and School Board receivables from other governments are as follows:

Component Unit -

Primary Government School Board
Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds Totals
Amounts Due From:
Commonwealth of Virginia:
Operating grants 3 7,779 $ - 5 7,779 $ -
Comprehensive Services - 99,038 99.038 -
Mobile Home Titling tax 7.481 - 7,481 -
Communication tax 119,220 - 119,220 -
State and Use Sales Tax - - - 033.385
Federal government operating grants 184.608 8.583 193.191 287.148
Town of Windsor - 24,818 24,818 -
Town of Smithfield 627.253 79,068 706,321 -
Other 5,415 - 5,415 57,485
Totals $ 951,756 % 211,507 § 1,163,263 $ 1,278,018

4,  Interfund Balances and Activity

The following balances at June 30, 2012 represent amounts due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund 5 201,5%4
Capital Projects Fund Public Utilities Fund 71.142
S 272736

These balances result from operating transactions between funds and are repaid during the next fiscal year within
the normal course of business.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Transfer OQut Transfer in Purpose Amount

Nonmajor Transfer for Social Services

General Fund Govermnmental Fund operations $ 727,165
Nonmajor Transfer for Comprehensive

General Fund Governmental Fund Scrvices operations 221,344
Nonmajor Transfer for Section 8

General Fund Governmental Fund operations 52,319
Nonmajor Transfer for County Fair

General Fund Governmenta! Fund operations 77,383
Nonmajor Transfer for E-911

General Fund Governmental Fund operations 748,537

Total $ 1,826,748

Transfers are used as follows: (1) to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect
them, to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them (2) to use unrestricted revenues collected in
the General Fund to finance various grants, projects or programs accounted for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorization and (3) to provide funding for capital expenditures or budgeted subsidies for
operations.

5. Notes Receivable

A,

Acquisition Notes

The County agreed to loan the IDA $358,000 to finance the acquisition of an office building by the
IDA. Interest on the outstanding principal balance of the note is due at a rate of 7% per annum. The
outstanding principal balance of the note receivable at June 30, 2012 is $148,900 and matures in
March 2017.

Town of Smithfield

As recorded in the General Fund, the County sold a building and land to the Town of Smithfield in
2014 for $677,215. The County financed $638,908 of the selling price at variable rates of interest
from 4.0% to 5.5% and maturing on January 1, 2019. The outstanding principle balance of the note
receivable at June 30, 2012 is $620,624.

Rehabilitation Notes
The Community Development Block Grant Program has made rehabilitation loans to individuals,

which are repayable in monthly instaliments with interest at 6%. The following is a summary of
rehabilitation loan transactions, which are inciuded in the Special Revenue Funds:

Rehabilitation notes receivable at July 1, 2011 $ 83,487
Principal repayments (6,207)
Rehabilitation notes receivable at June 30, 2012 $ 77,280
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6.  Lease Receivable
The IDA leases the office building discussed in Note 6.A. to International Paper. The agreement calis for
the purchase of this office building by International Paper for $1 at the end of the lease and has, therefore,
been treated as a direct financing lease transaction.

The following schedule summarizes the total future minimum lease payments:

2013 S 41,184
2014 41,184
2015 41,184
2016 41,184
2017 30,891
Total minimum lease payments 195,627
Less - amount representing interest (28,279)
Present value of future payments $ 167,348

Although International Paper closed its Franklin facility, the Company has been actively engaged in
marketing the facility.
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7.

Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets:

Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not heing depreciated:
Land
Intangibles
Construction in progress
Construction in progress
- jointly owned assets
Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings - County
Buildings - jointly owned assets
Land improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less - accumulated depreciation:
Buildings - County
Buildings - jointly owned assets
Land improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated - net
Governmental activities capital
assets - net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Primary Government as follows:

Balance Balance

July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
$ 12,743,908 § 395,596 § - $ 13,139,504
4,326,512 - - 4,326,512
1,984,087 979,019 - 2,963.106

- 1,396,568 - 1,396,568
19,054.507 2,771,183 - 21,825,690
33,899,766 1,183,560 - 35,083,326
39,394,841 - 1,170,169 38,224,672
7,905,296 66,480 - 7.971,776
4,368,954 146,413 87,380 4,427,987
3,320,348 46,587 382.699 2.984,236
88,889,205 1,443,040 1,640,248 88,691,997
3,704,315 655,095 - 4,359,410
9,167,984 916,294 159,923 9,924,355
1,312,767 353,440 - 1,666,207
1,746,152 337,812 25,850 2,058,114
2,709,660 217.329 378,205 2,548,784
18,640,878 2.479.970 563,978 20,556,870
70,248,327 (1.036.930) 1,076.270 68,135,127
$  89.302.834 § 1.734253 $ 1.076270 § 89,960,817

Governmental activities

General government administration

Public safety

General services
Health and welfare

Parks, recreation and culture

Community development

Education

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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Proprietary Funds
Busiuess -Type activities

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital asscts being depreciated:
Buildings
Land improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less - accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Land improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated - net

Business-Type activities capital assets - net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions  Deletions  June 30, 2012
$ 181,240 $ 35,600 $ -3 216,840
964,823 212,914 - 1,177,737
1,146,063 248,514 - 1,394,577
11,337,334 141,501 - 11,478,835
12,324,903 1,586,644 - 13,911,547
512,287 - - 512,287
289,129 32,783 17,000 304,912
24,463,653 1,760,928 17,000 26,207,581
2,549,250 233,979 - 2,783,225
7,109,900 648,489 - 7,758,389
328,743 23,439 - 352,182
205,294 28,586 17,000 216,880
10,193,187 934,493 17,000 11,110,680
14,270,466 826,435 - 15,096,901
$ 15,416,529 § 1,074,949 § -5 16,491,478
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Discretely Presented Component Balance Balance
Unit - School Boaid July 1,2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,619,726 § - 8 - § 1,619,726
Construction in progress 6,170 - 6,170 -
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 1,625,896 - 6,170 1,619,726
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 40,061,303 1,256,376 . 41,317,679
Land improvements 1,700,672 81,500 - 1,782,172
Equipment 11,035,890 193,009 287,800 10,941,099
Vehicles 5,211,606 71,976 - 5,283,582
Total capital assets being
depreciated 58,009,471 1,602,861 287,800 59,324,532
Less - accumulated depreciation: '
Buildings and improvements 19,361,863 1,973,163 - 21,335,026
Land improvements 1,151,959 62,967 - 1,214,926
Equipment 6,859,042 1,002,227 287,800 7,573,469
Vehicles 3,820,323 236,607 - 4,056,930
Tota! accumulated depreciation 31,193,187 3,274,964 287,800 34,180,351
Total capital assets being
depreciated - net 26,816,284 (1,672,103) - 25,144,181

School Board capital assets - net $ 28,442,180 § (1,672,103) $ 6,170 % 26,763,907

In accordance with Section 15.2-1800.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, local governments have
a “tenancy in common” with the school board whenever the locality incurs any financial obligation for any
school property which is payable over more than one fiscal year. For financial reporting purposes, the
legislation permits the locality to report the portion of school property related to any outstanding financial
obligation climinating any potential deficit from capitalizing assets financed with debt. The effect on the
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia for the year ended June 30, 2012, is that school financed assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, in the amount of $29,696,885 are reported in the primary government as “jointly
owned assets” for financial reporting purposes.
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Discretely Presented

Component Unit Industrial Development Balance Balance
Authority July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 10,859,198 % -8 - $§ 10,859,198

Construction in progress 151,393 29,862 - 181,255
Total capital assets not being depreciated 11,010,591 29,862 - 11,040,453
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 55,000 - - 55,000

Less - accumulated depreciation 2,750 1,100 - 3,850
Total capital assets being depreciated - net 52,250 1,100 - 51,150

IDA capital assets - net
$ 11,062,841 § 28,762 & - $ 11,091,603

The following construction commitments were entered into by the County with various vendors for
infrastructure and building improvements in the areas of general government administration, public
safety, education, parks, recreation and cultural and public utility as follows:

Remaining
Spent-to-date Commitment

Construction Commitments:

Industrial Park $ 6,685,061 §  1.363.329
STH Intermodal Park 12,689,812 693.149
ECC Communications Tower-Rushmere 46,380 20,084
10W Rescue Squad Building 689,118 46,179
Heritage Park Upgrades - 66,000
Regjonal Consent Order 939,284 48,925
Bethel Heights Upgrade 18,473 12,477
Camptown/Carrsville Public Utilities Improvement 429,527 17.817
CSX/Sewer Force Main 112,160 25,516
Georgie D. Tyler Middle School 1,396,568 22,249,993
Route 460 Pump Station 98,300 21,017

$ 23.104,683 $ 24,564,486
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8.  Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations during the year ended June 30, 2012:

Governmental Activities

Genvral obligation bonds

Bond premiums
Bond discounts

Deferred gains(losses)

on refundings

PACE program
Literary loans
Note payable

Net OPEB obligation
Compensated absences
Land1ili closure costs

Tatal Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activitics
General obligation bonds

Bond premiums

Bond discounts

Deferred (losses)
on refundings

Notes payable

Compunsaled absences
Net OPEB obligation
Total Business-Type Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units

School Board

Net OPEB obligation
Compcnsated absences

Industrial Development Authority

Note payable

Balsnce Bulance
July 1, June 30, Duc Within
2011 Increases Decreases 2012 One Year
$ 104,114,017 § $ 1,041,707 $ 103,072,310 § 2,923,957
1,932,310 - 240,920 1,691,390 -
(161,417) - (12,398) (149,019) -
(340,965) - (13,019) (327,946) -
105,543,945 - 1,257,210 104,286,735 2,923,957
4,326,512 . . 4,326,512 .
2,250,000 - 250,000 2,000,000 250,000
8,578 - 8,578 - -
385,736 197,972 34,942 548,766 -
1,159,903 529,786 455,666 1,234,023 123,402
1,596,077 297,290 - 1,893,367 -
$ 115270,751 $ 1025048 § 2,00639 § 114,289,403 § 3,297,359
$ 29,374,756 $ - 8 672,066 $ 28,702,690 $ 8,646,043
705,844 - 181,340 524,504 -
(25,521) - (6,286) (19,235) -
(932,258) - (78,322) (853,936) -
29,122,821 - 768,798 28,354,023 8,046,043
- 60,000 - 60,000 12,000
54,797 33,555 26,834 61,518 6,152
14,671 8,692 731 22,632 -
§ 29,192289 § 102,247 § 796,363 § 28,498,173 §$ 8,664,195
3 1,923,763 § 945,624 $ 372,528 § 2,496,859 $ -
541,255 98,754 56,466 583,543 58,354
$ 2,465,018 § 1,044,378 § 428,994 §$ 3,080,402 58,354
$ 175,797 §$ - $ 26,897 $ 148,900 $ 28,742
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A.  General Obligation Bonds

The government issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction
of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and
business-type activities and are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the
government, These bonds are generally issued with varied amounts of principal maturing each year.
There are no sinking fund requirements. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as
follows:

Amount
Qutstanding

General Obligation Bonds of 2011A (tax exempt bonds) - $17,630,000 17,630,000
dated June 2011 with principal payable in various annual installments

through 203 1. Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate that varies from

2.00% to 4.125% over the life of the bond. The bonds were used to

finance general obligation public improvements and to advance refund prior

issues. The bonds were issued at a premium of $235,938, which is being

amortized over the life of the bonds.

General Obligation Bonds of 2011B (tax exempt bonds) - $6,460,000 6,460,000
dated June 2011 with principal payable in one payment due April 2014.

Interest is payable semi-annually at a fixed rate of 3% over the life of the

bond. The bonds are being used to finance various public utility

improvements. The bonds were issued at a premium of $234,498, which is

being amortized over the life of the bonds.

General Obligation Bonds of 2011C (tax exempt bonds) - $7,500,000 7,500,000
dated June 2011 with principal payable in one payment due April 2016.

Interest is payable semi-annually at a fixed rate of 4% over the life of the

bond. The bonds are being used to finance the literary programs. The

bonds were issued at a premium of $702,150, which is being amortized

over the life of the bonds.
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General Obligation Bonds of 2011VPSA (tax exempt bonds) - 7,500,000
$7,500,000 dated June 2011 with principal payable in various annual

installments beginning June 2014 through to June 2027. These bonds were

obtained through the Virginia Public School Authority pooled Qualified

Schoo! Construction Bonds (QSCB). The QSCBs are tax credit bonds

such that the interest component of the bond is subject entirely to the

federal subsidy - reimbursement which offsets completely the interest on

these bonds. The bonds are being used for the school construction and

renovation projects.

General Obligation Bonds of 2010D (tax exempt bonds) - $12,145,000 12,070,000
dated September 2010 with principal payable in various annual

installments through April 2028. Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate

that varies from 2.00% to 4.00% over the life of the bond. The bonds are

being used to refund the balance of all the County's outstanding general

obligation series 2008A and general obligation refunding series 2009. The

bonds were issued at a premium of $643,939, which is being amortized

over the life of the bonds.

General Obligation Bonds of 2010A (tax exempt bonds) - $985,000 985,000
dated April 2010 with principal payable in various annual instaliments

through 2016. Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate that varies from

3.00% to 3.25% over the life of the bond. The bonds were used to refund

the balance of all the County's outstanding general obligation series 1996.

The bonds were issued at a premium of $36,522, which is being amortized

over the life of the bonds.

General Obligation Bonds of 2010B (tax exempt bonds) - $7,685,000 7,685,000
dated April 2010 with principal payable in one payment due March 2013.

Interest is payable semi-annually at a fixed rate of 4% over the life of the

bond. The notes were used to finance various public utility improvements.

The bonds were issued at a premium of $316,084, which is being

amortized over the life of the bonds.

General Obligation Bonds of 2010C (taxable Build America Bonds) - 13,530,000
$13,530,000 dated April 2010 with principal payable in various annual

installments through 2033. Interest is payable semi-annually at a rate that

varies from 3.70% to 6.05% over the life of the bond. The bonds were

used to finance various capital improvements, including but not limited to,

the acquisition, construction and equipping of courthouse and public safety

facilities, public buildings and the acquisition of land for economic

development. The bonds were issued at par value.
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General Obligation Bonds of 2008B - $25,000,000 dated December 25,000,000
2008, principal is payable in various annual installments through 2032.

Interest payable semi-annually at a rate that varies from 4% to 6% over the

life of the bond. The bonds were used to finance continuation of public

utility improvements begun under the Series 2008A bond, various

economic development projects, a new County courts building, and other

public safety and fire/rescue construction and renovation projects.

General Obligation Bonds of 2005 - $13,880,000 dated August 2005, 10,460.000
principal payable in various annual installments through 2022, interest

payable semi-annually at coupon rates from 3% to 5%. The proceeds

were used to advance refund a portion of the outstanding balance of the

1995 and 1997 Series Bonds. The bonds were issued at a $316,290

premium, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds. The

repayment of the bonds is allocated between governmental and business-

type activities.

General Obligation Bonds of 2004 - $27,870,000 dated May 2004, 17,330,000
principal payable in various annual installments through 2024, interest

payable semi-annually at coupon rates from 3% to 5% per annum. Of this

bond issue, $23,700,000 was used to finance construction of a school

building The remaining portion was used to advance refund

the outstanding balance of a 1995 Series Bonds. The bonds were issued at

a $332,520 premium, which is being amortized over the life of the bonds.

General Obligations Bonds of 2003 - $18,140,000 dated February 2003, 5,625,000
principal payable in various annual instaliments through 2023, interest
payable semi-annually at coupon rates from 2% to 5%. Of this bond issue,
$8,815,000 was used to finance various capital improvements. The
remaining $9,325,000 was used to advance refund $9,050,000 of
outstanding 1991, 1993, and 1994 Series Bonds. The bonds were issued
at a $136,420 premium, which is being amortized over the life of the
bonds.

Total General Obligation Bonds Outstanding $ 131,775,000
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Maturities of General Obligation Bonds, including future interest payments, are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 b 2,923957 § 4,041,497 § 8,646,043 § 1,056,402 § 11,570,000 § 5,097,899
2014 3,270,205 3,934,032 7,454,795 715,294 10,725,000 4,649,326
2015 4,843 409 3,812,022 1,031,591 485,999 5,875,000 4,298,021
2016 12,487,807 3,646,274 1,062,193 447310 13,550,000 4,093,584
2017 6,081,562 3,168,209 1,108,439 401,814 7.190,001 3,570,023

2018-2022 30,428,130 12,382,522 5,591,871 1,496,742 36,020,001 13,879,264

2023-2027 25,475,387 6,687,803 2,489,612 602,312 27,964,999 7,290,117

2028-2032 16,591,853 2,313,771} 1,318,146 180,262 17,909,999 2,494,033

2032-2033 970,000 38,145 - - 970,000 38,145
Total $ 103,072,310 § 40,024,277 § 28,702,690 $ 5,386,135 § 131,775,000 § 45410412

B. Refunded Debt

Prior Years Defeased Obligations

In prior years, the County defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. At June 30, 2012,
the County had $1,000,000 in outstanding prior year bonds that arc considered defeased.

C. Purchase Agricultural Conservation Easement Program

On May 19, 2005, Board of Supervisors adopted an ordinance establishing the Purchase Agricultural
Conservation Easement Program (PACE). The primary purpose of the ordinance is to promote and
encourage the preservation of farmland in Isle of Wight County. Through PACE, the County acquires
development rights in designated areas within the County through the purchase of agricultural land
preservation easements. Landowners who meet certain eligibility criteria may sell an easement to the
County while holding fee simple title to the land and continuing to farm. The County acquires these
development rights by executing installment purchase agreements with the landowners and have an
indefinite life.

These agreements provide for the payment of the principal balance to be paid in a single installment
due approximately thirty years after execution of the agreement. Interest on the unpaid principal
balance is payable semi-annually and interest expense was $209,836 for June 30, 2012.

These obligations are constituted within the meaning of Article VI, Section 10 of the Virginia

Constitution and are general obligations of the County, pledging the full faith and credit and

unlimited taxing power of the County. By policy, interest will be paid from a dedicated portion of
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real estate taxes with principal payments being made from a maturing zero coupon Treasury
securities purchased from the dedicated portion of real estate taxes.

At June 30, 2012, two installment purchase agreements totaling 619.08 acres at a total purchase price
o1 $4,326,512 are oulstanding.

The following is a summary of the repayment schedules:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activitics
Ending June 30, Principal Intcrest

2013 $ - 8 209,836
2014 - 209,836
2015 - 209.836
2016 - 209,836
2017 - 209,836
2018-2022 - 1,049,180
2023-2027 - 1,049,180
2028-2032 - 1,049,180
2032-2038 - 1,049,180
2038-2039 4,326,512 524,589
$ 4,326,512 § 5.770,489

D. Literary Loans

Literary loans consist of loans from the State Literary Loan Fund for the construction and
improvement of various schools. Payment will be made in annual instaliments plus interest of 3%.

The following is a summary of the repayment schedules:

Fiscal Year Governmental Activities
Ending June 30, Principal Interest

2013 $ 250,000 $ 60,000
2014 250,000 52,500
2015 250,000 45,000
2016 250.000 37,500
2017 250.000 30.000

2018-2020 750,000 45,000

$ 2.000,000 % 270,000

E. Notes Payable

The note payable of the IDA is the note to the General Fund used to finance the construction of the
office building leased by the IDA to International Paper. This note is payable in annual installments
plus interest at 7% per annum.
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The following is a summary of the repayment schedules:

Fiscal Ycar
Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2013 $ 28742 § 9,036
2014 30,712 7,066
2015 32,818 4,960
2016 35,068 2,710
2017 21,560 480

$ 148,900 § 24,252

F.  Notes Payable— Public Utilities

During the year the county purchased a water transmission easement for $90,000 of which $60,000 of
the amount was financed by the owner over five years at zero interest. The note matures in 2017.

The following is a summary of the repayment schedules:

Fiscal Ycar
Ending June 30, Principal Interest
2013 § 12,000 $ -
2014 12,000 -
2015 12,000 -
2016 12,000 -
2017 12,000 -

5 60,000 § -

9.  Defined Pension Benefit Obligation
A. Plan Description

The County and School Board contribute to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the VRS. School Board nonprofessional
employees participate as a separate group in the agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
Benefits vest after five years of service credit. Members earn one month of service credit for each
month they are employed and their employer is paying into the VRS. Members are eligible to
purchase prior public service, active duty military service, certain periods of leave and previously
refunded VRS service as credit in their plan.

VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local government employees — Plan 1 and Plan 2:
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o Members hired before July 1, 2010 and who have service credits before July 1, 2010 are covered
under Plan 1. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit
beginning at age 65 with at least five years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of
service credit, They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 55 with at least five years
of service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.

¢ Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits before July 1,
2010 are covered under Plan 2. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced
benefit beginning at their normal Social Security retirement age with at least five years of service
credit or when the sum of their age and service equals 90. They may retire with a reduced benefit
as carly as age 60 with at least five years of service credit.

e Eligible hazardous duty members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible for an unreduced benefit
beginning at age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit or age SO with at least 25 years of
service credit. These members include sheriffs, deputy sheriffs and hazardous duty employees of
political subdivisions that have elected to provide enhanced coverage for hazardous duty service.
They may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 50 with at least five years of service
credit. All other provisions of the member’s plan apply.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage
of the member's average f{inal compensation multiplied by the member’s total service credit. Under
Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the member’s 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation. Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the member’s 60
consecutive months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty
members is 1.70 %. The retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regiohal jail superintendents is 1.85%.
The retirement multiplier for eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employees other than
sheriffs and jail superintendents is 1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer. ‘At retirement,
members can elect the Basic Benefit, the Survivor Option, a Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment
(PLOP) or the Advance Pension Option. A retirement reduction Tactor is applied to the Basic Benefit
amount for members electing the Survivor Option, PLOP or Advance Pension Option or those
retiring with a reduced benefit.

Retirees are eligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second
calendar year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%; under Plan 2, the COLA
cannot exceed 6.00%. During years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0.00%. The VRS also
provides death and disability benefits. T itle 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia.

The system issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the plans administered by VRS. A copy
of the report may be obtained from the VRS Web site at ht‘tp://www.varelire.org/Pdf/PubIications/20I0-
annual-report.pdf or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA,
23218-2500.
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B.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute
5% of their annual reported compensation to the VRS. This 5% member contribution has been
assumed by both the County and School Board. In addition, the County and School Board are
required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund its participation in the VRS using the
actyarial basis specified by Code of Virginia and approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The
County and School Board’s annual contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was
11.28% and 11.43%, respectively, of the annual covered payroll, with a funding period of 30 years
and amortization factor of 18.2276.

Annual Pension Cost

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the County and School Board’s annual pension costs of
$1,470,448 and -$289,096 respectively, were equal to the County and School Board’s required and
actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2011, actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
7.00% investment rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general
government employees and 3.50% to 4.75% per year for employees eligible for enhanced benefits
available to law enforcement, firefighters, and sheriffs, and (c) 2.50% per year cost-of-living
adjustment. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the
County and School Board’s assets is equal to the modified market value of assets. This method was
determined using techniques that smooth the cffects of short-term volatility in the market value of
assets over a five-year period. The County and School Board’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level percentage of payrolls on an open basis within a period of 30 years or less.

Schedules of Employer. Contributions

Fiscal Year ~ Annual Pension Percentage  Net Pension
Ended June 30, Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

County Employees
2012 $ 1,470,448 100% -
2011 $ 1,494,839 100% -
2010 3 1,320,125 100% -
School Board Nonprofessional Employees
2012 $ 289,096 100% -
2011 $ 276,687 100% -
2010 $ 262,629 100% -
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E. Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Unfunded

accrued actuarial UAAlL asa
Actuarial  liability (AAL) accrued percentage
Actuarial value value of project unit liability Funding Covered of covered

date June 30, 2011 assets credit (UAAL) Ratlo Payroll payroll
County $ 26,264,070 §$ 33,274,845 § 7,010,775 78.93% $10,509,123 66.71%

Component Unit -

School Board $ 4,353,323 $5,276.266 $922,943 82.51% $2,050.158 45,02%

Immediately following the notes to the financial statements in the Required Supplementary
Information is a multi-year schedule of funding progress for the County and the School Board, which
presents trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits over time.

F.  School Board Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Plan

School Board professional employees participate in a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the VRS cost-sharing pool.

School Board’s contributions to VRS for the year ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were
$3,505,082, $2,791,144, $3,602,256, respectively, and were equal to the required contribution for
cach year. The School Board’s contribution rate applicable to professional employees for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012 was 12.24% percent of the annual covered payroll.

10. Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans

A. Plan Provisions

In addition to providing the pension benefits described in Note 10, the County and School Board
provide postemployment health care (OPEB) for qualifying retired employees, who are not yet
eligible for Medicare, through a single-employer defined benefit plan. The bencfits benefit levels,
employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the County and School Board
and can be amended.

B. Plan Description

Currently, covered full-time active employees who retire directly from the County, are eligible to
receive an early or regular retirement benefit from the VRS and have at least 15 years of service (or
have retired due to line-of-duty injuries) are eligible to receive post-employment health care benefits.
Each year, retirees participating in the County’s sponsored plans will be given the apportunity to
change plans or drop coverage during an open enrollment period. The pre-Medicare retirees have a
choice of two plans: Key Care and Health Keepers Plans. Post-Medicare retirees and spouses of
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retirees are not eligible to participate. Dental plans are available at the retiree’s cost and it is assumed
for both the County and the Schools that participant dental contributions cover any dental claims that
may occur. Thercfore, there is no liability for dental plan coverage in retirement, There werc 5
Counly participants at the time of the actuarial study. Since the retirees contribute towards their
health insurance premiums based on a blended rate, the County has an implicit liability.

For the School Board, the retiree must also retire directly from the Schools and be eligible to receive
an carly or regular retirement benefit from the VRS, Post-Medicare retirecs are not eligible to
participate. Spouses of retirees may participate until they are eligible for Medicare. The School
Board provides a single-employcr defined benefit medical plan that covers retirces until they are
eligible for Medicare. There is no coverage provided for retirees or their spouses once they reach the
age of 65 and are eligible for Medicare. Both plans were established under the authority of the Isle of
Wight County School Board and any amendments to the plans must be approved by the School
Board. The School Board’s current plan participants are 23, Since the retirees contribute towards
their health insurance premiums based on a blended rate, the School Board has an implicit liability.

Employees may retire under the Virginia Retirement System with an unreduced pension benefit under
the following age and service requirements:

Age 50 and 30 years of service
Age 65 and 5 years of service

Employees may retire with a reduced pension benefit at either age 50 and 10 years of service or age
55 and five years of service.

C. Funding Policy

The anticipated growth in the net OPEB obligation is based on contributions to the benefit plan on a
pay-as-you-go cost basis. The County of School Board’s actuarial studies used data which has been
projected into the future based on the assumption the current active population remains constant. In
addition, the estimated contributions are based on the implicit rate subsidy payments made during the
year by the retirees. The plan is unfunded.
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D. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligations

The County's annual OPEB cost (expense) is caiculated based on the ARC, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with GAAP. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the
County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes In

the County's net QPERB obligation,

Governmental Activities
Annual required contribution (ARC)
Interest on net OPEB obligations

Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual OPEB Cost

Pay-As-You-Go Annual Employer Contributions
Increase in Net OPEB Obligations

Net OPEB Obligations - beginning of year
Net OPEB Obligations - end of year

Business-Type Activities
Annual required contribution

Interest on net OPEB obligations

Adjustment to annual required contributions
Annual OPEB Cost

Pay-As-You-Go Annual Employer Contributions
Increase in Net OPEB Obligations

Net OPEB Obligations - beginning of year
Net OPEB Obligations - end of year

Component Unit - School Board

Annual required contribution

Interest on net OPEB obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual OPEB Cost

Pay-As-You-Go Annual Employer Contribution
Increase in Net OPEB Obligations

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year
Net OPEB Obligations - end of year
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198,291
15,429

(15,748)

197,972
(34,942)

163,030
385,736

548,766

8,704
587
(599)

8,692
(731)

7,961
14,671

22,632

947,213
76,951
(78,540)

945,624
(372,528)

573,096
1,923,763

2,496,859
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Information reflecting the annual OPEB cost, which approximated the annual required contribution,
and the percentages contributed for the past three fiscal years is as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual Percent Net OPEB

Ended June 30, _ OPEB Cost Contributed Qbligation
_ Governmental Activities

2012 $ 197,972 17._6% $ 548,766

2011 185,273 12.8% 385,736

2010 150,722 26.8% 224,246
Business-Type Activitics

2012 $ 8,692 8.4% $ 22,632

2011 7,762 14.2% 14,671

2010 5,382 26.8% 8,009

Component Unit - School Board

2012 $ 945,624 39.4% $ 2,496,859
2011 872,172 30.7% 1,923,763
2010 895,188 26.8% 1,319,394

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation Methods

The Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method was used to calculate ail of the expense amounts and the
funded status of the plan. The calculations were performed in accordance with the methodologies set
forth in GAAP. This method assigns the plan’s total actuarial present value of future benefits to
various periods. The actuarial accrued liability is assigned to years prior to the valuation and the
normal cost is assigned to the year following the valuation. The remaining costs are assigned to future
years.

Employees Included in the Calculations

All active employees who are expected to meet the plan’s eligibility requirements on or before the
ultimate assumed retirement age are included in the calculations. Retirees, spouses, and spouse
survivors who are entitled to a benefit under the provisions of the plan are also included.

Actuarial Assumptions

In the July 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the Entry ‘Age Normal actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included calculations based on'a discount rate of 4.0% for the unfunded liability
and amortization of the initial unfunded actuarial liability over 30 ycars based on a level percent of
payroll method. The actuarial accrued liability was 1,487,1 11 and 7,546,916 for the County and the
School Board, respectively. Future increases for the cost of medical benefits were assumed to range
from 5.0% to 9.0% with the larger increases in the early years and gradually decreasing to 5.0% in
2016 and beyond.
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future.

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the
tine of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits for the County and School Board.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial accrued liability actuarial percentage
Actuarial valuation value of (AAL) project accrued liability Funding Covered of covered
date July 1, 2010 assets unit credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll  payroll
Governmental
acitivities $ - 1,439,851 1,439,851 - N/A N/A
Business-type activities _$ - 47,260 47,260 - N/A N/A
Component Unit -
School Board $ - 7,546,916 7,546,916 - N/A N/A

11, Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

A.

Post Closure Landfill Costs

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to perform certain continuing maintenance
and monitoring functions subsequent to the closure of a landfill site. The County ceased accepting
solid waste at its landfill in 1987 and completed initial closure measures in that same year. The
County closed its landfill prior to the date mandated by state and federal law and regulation and,
therefore, the County is only liable for post-closure monitoring. During fiscal year 2006. the County
was deemed to be in violation of the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations and the approved
Closure Plan. The County submitted a corrective action plan to the Commonwealth's Department of
Environmental Quality. During 2008, the County provided for additional financial assurance in the
amount of $1,000,000. The estimated future total cost of the post-closure monitoring and maintenance
is $1.893,367 based on the expected cost for all equipment, facilities and services required to monitor
and maintain the landfill post-closure. This represents an increase over the 2010 estimated liability
due to increased costs of state permits, increased laboratory fees, the addition of a Post-Closure
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consulting contract and the need to contract for repairs to the landfill cap. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012, the County expended $343,891 in post-closure costs. The current costs of
landfill closure and post closure cure is an estimatc subject to changes resulting from inflation,
technology or change in applicable laws or regulations.

B. Underground Storage Tank

In January 2001, petroleum contamination was encountered on the western edge of the County’s
complex, which was traced to a leaking 1,000 gallon underground storage tank containing heating oil.
The tank was subsequently closed and an investigation was conducted to determine the extent of
contamination. Although contamination appeared to be confined to the immediate vicinity, two 4-
inch recovery wells and ten 2-inch monitoring wells were installed on the site. On July 2, 2003, the
Depariment of Environmental Quality (DEQ) approved a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) calling for
removal of free product by Fluid Vapor Recovery and passive skimmers and periodic sampling of
groundwater and tap water. The endpoint for this CAP is a free product thickness of less than 0.01
feet in all wells maintained for six consecutive months. The County must continue to recover fice
product on a monthly basis and submit CAP Implementation reports on a quarterly basis until this
endpoint is met. For fiscal year 2012, the County expended $16,967 for the continuing monitoring in
accordance with the CAP. The County is reimbursed by the DEQ. The DEQ has contracted directly
with an outside contractor to continue the monitoring in accordance with the CAP.

C. Risk'Management

The County and School Board are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to
or destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. For
general liability, automobile liability and workers compensation and employers’ liability, the County
participates with other localities in the Virginia Association of Counties (VACO) Risk Management
Program. The VACO Risk Management Program provides counties and county related agencies with
insurance coverage for property and liability insurance and risk management services through the
Virginia Association of Counties Group Self-Insurance Risk Pool (VACoRP). The County pays an
annual premium for its share of the cost of the insurance which includes general liability, product
liability and personal injury with a limit of $5,000,000 for each occurrence; $5,000,000 combined
limit for auto liability and $1,000,000 limit for workers compensation coverage. The School Board
participates in the Virginia School Boards Association Property & Casualty Pool for its general
liability and automobile liability with limits of $1,000,000, respectively, for each occurrence. The
School Board is included in the workers’ compensation coverage of the County and also has
additional Excess Liability coverage and Boiler and Machinery Coverage with limits of $9,000,000
and $10,000,000, respectively.

There have not been any reductions in insurance coverage for the County or the School Board from
the prior year and settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in
any of the past three fiscal years.

The School Health Benefits Internal Service Fund was established to account for the School Board’s
group health insurance. The School Board provides insurance benefits from this fund through its
third-party administrator. The School Board pays the basic premiums for the employees’ coverage
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into the fund and allows employees to select additional benefits for themselves and their dependents
with premiums paid by the employees for such additional benefits. Contracted insurance providers
receive disbursements from the fund based on monthly enrollment and premium ealculations. All
funds are available to pay claims, claim reserves and administrative costs of the program.

The changes in medical claims liability for fiscal years 2012 and 2011 were:

2012 2011
Claims liabilities, beginning of year $ 861,583 $ 919,514
Current year claims 4,294,622 4,948,161
Change in prior year claims 891,143 (359.876)
Claim payments (4,963,514) (3,980,487)
Legal, Administrative and other expenscs (373.773) (665,729)
Claims liabilites, end of year 3 710,061 $ 861,583
Claims liabilites, due in one year $ 615,841 $ 529,362

D. Contingencies

Amounts received or receivable for grants or contracts from outside agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed amounts,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amounts,
if any, which may be disallowed by any grantors, cannot be determined at this time, but management
of the County believes any such amounts will be immaterial to its financial position.

During the year, the County was involved in legal matters that were settled prior to the release of the
financial statements. Those matters were settled for immaterial amounts; therefore, the amounts were
not accrued in the accompanying financial statements.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The County, in conjunction with other localities, created the Western Tidewater Water Authority
(Authority), the Western Tidewater Regional Jail Authority (Jail), the Blackwater Regional Library
(Library) and the Western Tidewater Community Services Board (WTCSB). The governing bodies of these
organizations are appointed by the governing bodies of the participating jurisdictions. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012, the County contributed $160,272 to the operations of the WTCSB $577,463 to
the Library and $634,569 to the Jail.

In September 2009, the County amended its agreement with the Authority which provides for construction
of the Western Branch Pipeline used to convey purchased raw water. The amendment to the contract
contains provisions for the Authority to negotiate a water supply agreement between the Cities of Suffolk
and Norfolk and the County. Annually, the County pays a fixed charge as an outside customer to the City
of Suffolk to reserve the capacity for County’s annual water resource requirements. The County also pays &
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fixed charge to the City of Norfolk for access to its water supply reservoir. The Authority passed through
billings of $2;408,016 to the County for the fixed charges during fiscal year 2012. Additionally, in fiscal
year 2012, the County contributed approximately $273,984 to the Authority for its sharc of capital costs

incurred by the Authority.

Annexation Agrecment

The County has entered into an agreement with the City of Franklin (City) whereby the City waived any
and all of its rights and power to seek the annexation of the County’s territory within a designated area
adjacent to the City. In return, the County agreed to share with the City all local tax revenues collected by
the County within the designated area using a predetermined formula. For the year ended June 30, 2012,

the payments made to the City were $1,193,025.

Fund Balances

The County has the following fund balance classifications at June 30, 2012:

Nonspendable
Inventory
Notes receivable
Restricted for:
Environmental protection
Capital projects
Community development
Public safety
Assigned to:
Capital projeets
Parks and recreation
Subsequent year's
cxpenditures
Unassigned

Capital Other

General Projects Governmental Total
$ - 3 - $ 40,215 $ 40,215
120,158 - - 120,158
29,650 - - 29,650
- 28,679,316 - 28,679,310
- - 287,036 287,036
- - 3,841 3.841
- 5,393,001 - 5,393,001
- - 55,246 55,240
632,588 - - 632,588
20,646,260 - - 20,646,260
$21,428.,656  $34.072,317 $ 386,338 $55,887.311
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15. Subsequent Events

Series 2012 (Partial Current Refunding, Partial Advance Refunding)

On September 27, 2012, the County issued $48,465,000 of General Obligation Public Improvement and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, with a true interest cost of 3.23%. The bonds consisted of serial bonds bearing
various fixed rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.00% with annual maturities from July 1, 2014 through July 1, 2043.

A portion of the net proceeds were used to a) currently refund the County’s Series 2010B Bond Anticipation
Note, with principal amount outstanding of $7,685,000 and an interest rate of 4.00%, and b) advance refund (i)
the County’s Series 2011B Bond Anticipation Note, with principal amount outstanding of $6,460,000 and an
interest rate of 3.00%, (ii) the County’s Series 2003 Bonds maturing in 2014 through 2023 with principal amount
outstanding of $5,210,000 and interest rates of 4.00% to 4.50%, and (iii) the County’s Series 2004 Bonds
maturing in 2015 through 2024 with principal amount outstanding of $14,325,000 and interest rates of 4.00% to
5.00%.

oo %k Kk *k
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Primary Government
General fund:
Revenue from loonl sburces;
Conaral propery taxes:
Real properly

Real and personul public service corporation praperty

Personal property
Boat
Mobilc home
Maghinery and tools
Equipment
Penaities
Interest and other costs
Total general property taxes

Other local taxes:
Local sales and use
Consumer's utliily
Consumption
Business license
Motor vehicle llcenses
Penalties
Interest
Recordation and wills
Lodging
Meals tax
Communications sales and use
Bank franchise tax
Charter Franchise

Total other local taxes

Permits, fees and hicenses:
Animal licenses
Transfer fees
Inspection Technology fees
Zoning and subdivision fees
Building permits
Inspection fees
Concealed weapon permils
Cash proffers
Total permits, fees and licenses

Fines and forfeitures
Total fines and forfeitures

Revenues from use of money and property:
Revenues from use of money
Revenues from use of property

Total revenues from use of money and property

Miscellaneous:
Miscellancous
Gifts and donations
Farmers market
Total miscellnneous

Original
Budget

Flnal
Budget

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive (Negative)

$ 280%7,000 § 28,097,000 § 27203301 ¥ (781,784)
600,000 600,000 842,810 242810
0,805,000 8,162,432 6,176,745 (1,985,687)
245,000 314,193 317,658 23,495
123,000 122,000 132,266 10,266
2,200,000 2,202,003 1,179,748 (1,022,255)

- 1,921,817 1,537,613 (384,204)
225,000 225,000 346,864 121,864
130,000 130,000 175,597 45,597
41,404,000 41,754,445 38,024,532 (3.729,913)
1,800,000 1,800,000 1,964,389 164,389
850,000 850,000 787,381 (62,619)
90,000 90,000 81,917 (8,083)
360,000 360,000 382,134 22,134
535,000 535,000 653,776 118,776
- - 4,694 4,694
- - 2,181 2,181
150,000 150,000 598,186 448,186
23,000 23,000 25477 2,477
302,000 302,000 330,201 28,201
1,430,000 1,430,000 1,359,835 (70,165)
5,000 5,000 4,617 (383)
- - 5,809 5,809
5,545,000 %,545,000 6,200,597 655,597
20,000 20,000 18,994 (1.006)
200 900 997 97
- - 6,673 6,675
45,000 45,000 43,820 (1,180)
215,000 215,000 226,749 11,749
10,000 10,000 10,523 523
4,800 4,800 8,355 3,555
§5,000 85,000 64,189 (20,811}
380,700 380,700 380,302 (398)
61,000 61,000 85,598 24,598
61,000 61,000 85,598 24,598
28,500 28,500 913,305 885,305
54,000 54,000 71,537 17,837
82,500 82,500 085,342 902,842
50,000 50,000 371,242 327,242
- 61,032 62,223 1,191
- 7,049 26,746 19,697
50,000 118,081 466,211 348,130
Continued
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Charges for services:
Charges for Commonwealth's Attorncy

Charges for parks and recreation

Charges for building construction court fee
Charges for law enforcemenl and other protection
Charges for emergency medical services

Charges for maps
Recovered costs:

Indirect cosl allocation

Court costs
Other

Total charges for services
Total revenues from local sources
Revenue from the Commonwealth
Noncategorical aid:
State personal property tax relief
Other revenue from the Commonwealth
‘T'otal noncategorical aid

Categorical aid:

Shared expenses:

Commonwealth's Attorney

Sheriff

Commissioner of the Revenue

Treasurer

Registrar/electoral board
Clerk of the Circuit Court
Total shared expenses

Other categorical aid.

Bicycle/ pedestrian trail
DMYV Selective Enforcement

Fire program funds
Four for life
Litter control

OEMS Consolidated grants program

Port security grant

Purchase of agriculture development rights

SRO
Vietim witiess

V-DOT Road Refund
Governor's Develop. Opportunity Fund

Other

Total other categorical aid
Total categorical aid

Total revenues from the Commonwealth

59

Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
2,000 2,000 14,410 12,410
257,815 257,815 240,615 (17,200)
20,000 20,000 40,883 20,883
53,225 53,225 70,096 16,871
475,000 475,000 672,664 197,604
500 500 1,131 631
70,000 70,000 71,525 7,525
35,000 35,000 227,390 192,390
225,000 225,000 122,260 (102.740)
1,138,540 1,138,540 1,466,974 328,434
48,661,740 49,080,266 47,609,556 (1,470,710)
5,115,890 5,115,890 5,115,890 -
16,715 16,715 57,305 40,590
5,132,605 5,132,605 5,173,195 40,590
348,704 348,704 348,138 (566)
1,145,838 1,145,838 1,141,246 (4,592)
121,902 121,902 122,137 235
109,095 109,095 109,372 277
47,647 47,647 56,834 9,187
261,229 261,229 245,875 (15,354)
2,034,415 2,034,415 2,023,602 (10,813)
- 258,576 155,633 (102,943)
- 41,151 29,401 (11,750}
59,850 59,850 65,640 5,790
38,389 38,389 36,858 (1,531)
- 7,717 7,717 -
- 4,327 - (4,327)
- 199,751 31,952 (167,799)
- 110,952 - (110,952)
- 26,775 16,263 (10,512)
- 48,292 48,292 -
- - 408,320 408,320
- 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
- 67,551 18,706 (48,845)
98,239 4,863,331 4,818,782 (44,549)
2,132,654 6,897,746 6,842,384 (55,362)
7.265.259 12,030,351 12,015,579 (14,772)
Continued
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Varianee with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
Revenue from the federal government
Home Program - - 50,871 50,871
BPV - 3,120 2,520 (600)
V-STOP - 31,721 21,594 (10,127)
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant - 3,557 1,372 (2,185)
Care & Confinement of Prisoners - - 191 191
FEMA - 150,829 158,528 7,699
Interest Subsidy - - 569,315 569,315
Total revenues from the federal government - 189,227 804,391 615,164
Total General Fund revenues and other financing sources 55,926,999 61,299,844 60,429,526 (870,318)
General government administration
Legislative:
Board of Supervisors 305,878 327,878 357,832 (29,954)
General and financial administration:
Budget and finance 599,432 727,405 704,451 22,954
Commissioner of the Revenue 581,088 589,998 578,894 11.104
Communications 94,783 95,569 91,811 3,758
County Administralor 501,485 512,545 502,819 9,726
County Attorney 573,735 608,759 356,418 252,341
Human resources 206,611 208,960 168,869 40,091
Information technology/GIS 709,371 756,753 669,247 87,506
Insurance 338,075 299,075 281,501 17,574
Real cstate assessment 16,600 366,600 318,204 48,396
Treasurer 567,451 575,155 540,265 34,800
Total general and financinl administration 4,188,631 4,740,819 4,212,479 528,340
Board of Elections:
Registrar/electoral board and officials 245,804 246,723 244.579 2,144
Total Board of Elections 245,804 246,723 244,579 2,144
Total general government administration 4,740,313 5315420 4,814,890 500,530
Judicial administration:
Courts:
Circuit Court 77,041 77,041 40,464 36,577
General District Court 6,325 6,325 4,950 1,375
Fifth District Court services unit 155,560 155,560 110,309 45,251
Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court 10,790 10,790 8,522 2,268
Clerk of the Circuit Court 408,526 413,431 401,400 12,031
Total courts 658,242 663,147 565,645 97,502
Commonwealth's Attorney 488,465 495,891 492,935 2,956
Total Commonyvealth's Attorney 488,465 495,891 492,935 2,956
Total judicial administration 1,146,707 1,159,038 1,058,580 100,458
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Variance with

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
Public safety:
Law enforcement and traffic control:
Sheriff 3,189,447 3,273,738 3,217,771 55,967
Total law enforcement and traffic control 3,189,447 3,273,738 3,217,771 55,967
Fire and rescue services:
Emergency services 1,119,250 1,176,870 1,492,103 (315,233)
Volunteer fire department 299,017 654,207 654,205 2
Ambulance and rescue service 335,258 552,958 539,467 13.491
Total fire and rescue services 1,753,525 2.384,035 2,685,775 (301,740)
Inspections - building 466,201 475,426 469,261 6,165
Total inspections - building 466,201 475,426 469,261 6.165
Other protection:
Animal control 249,722 254,066 256,899 (2,833)
DMV selective enforcement - 41,151 32,646 8,505
Emergency management (civil defense) 8,302 - - -
Fifth district community corrections program 8,579 8,579 8,579 -
Flre prevention 47,000 47,000 65,640 (18,640)
Four for life 28,500 28,500 36,858 (8,358)
Byrne JAG - 2,481 - 2,481
OEMS consolidaled grants program - 4,327 - 4,327
Port security grant - 199,751 31,952 167,799
SRO - 26,775 26,775 -
Western Tidewater Regional Jail 637,988 637,988 634,569 3,419
Other - 195,025 205,629 (10,604)
Total other protection 980,091 1,445,643 1.299,547 146,096
Total.public safety 6,389,264 7,578,842 7,672,354 (93,512)
General services:
General administration (Pub Wks) 191,221 200,865 197,887 2,978
Englneering division 532,727 575,487 466,568 108,919
Other - 89,000 89,000 -
Total administration 723,948 865,352 753,455 111,897
General services:
Maintenance of highways, strects, bridges and sidewalks:
Roadway beautification 3,100 4,933 1,059 3,874
Total maintenance of highways,
strects, bridges und sidewalks 3,100 4,933 1,059 3,874
Sanitation and waste removal:
Refuse collection 811,802 871,807 897,321 (25,514)
Refuse disposal 2,850,000 2,634,500 2,675,751 (41,251
Total sanitation and waste removal 3,661,802 3,506,307 3.573,072 (66,765)
Maintenance of general buildings and grounds:
General properties (Bldg&Grds) 1,938,580 2,148,090 2,124,969 23,121
Transportation/maintenance 41,000 41,000 77,692 (36,692)
Litier control - 7,717 7.71117 -
DEQ oil tank clean up 5,000 5,000 3,745 1,255
Total maintenance of general
buildings and grounds 1,984,580 2,201,807 2,214,123 (12,316)
Total general services 6,373,430 6,578,399 6.541.709 36,690
Continued
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Variance with

Health and welfare:
Commission on Aging
Court Appointed Special Advocate
DMV Animal Plates
Early Childhoad Councll
Genieve Shelter
Independence Cenlor of Tidewnter
10W Christlan Outreach
Isle of Wight Trind
lsls of Wight Health Depariment
Obiei/Luter Obesity Reduction Program
Senior Services of Southeastern 1iampton Roads
Suffolk ITomeless Sheiter
Juvenile Accountability
Western Tidewater Health District
Victim witness
V-STOP
Western Tidewater Community Service Board
Western Tidewater Free Clinic

Total heaith and welfare

Education:
Local contribution

‘Total education

Parks, recreation and cultural:
Parks and recreation
Skating rink
Virginin Port Authority
Bieycle/ pedestrian trail
Parks and recreation programs

Total parks and reercation

Historie Resources Division
Cultural Arts Organizalions

Total culturnl enrichment

Library:
Community College
Library administration

Total llbrary

Total parks, reereation and cultural

Community development:

Planning:
Planning & Zoning
Economic development
Tourism
Chamber of Commerce
Purchase of agriculture developmentrights
Other

Total planning
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Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Pusitive (Negative)
1,700 1,700 1,700 -
34,723 34,723 34,723 -
- 810 831 @n
31,250 31,250 31,250 .
8,000 8,000 8,000 -
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
6,000 6,000 6,000 .
2,780 2,780 2,730 -
- - 10,000 (10,000)
. 24,283 . 24,283
33,413 33,413 33,413 -
8,000 8,000 8,000 -
51,216 52,136 32,262 19,874
522,464 522,464 522,464 -
15,540 65,121 60,957 4,164
7.699 39,627 28,997 10,630
160,272 160,272 160,272 -
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
493,057 1,000,579 951,649 48,930
25,764,167 26,050,884 24,136,237 1,914,647
25,764,167 26,050,884 24,136,237 1,914,647
1,149,077 1,169,369 1,146,692 22,677
41,020 41,800 37,244 4,556
- 44,000 - 44,000
- 560,062 195,224 364,838
219,672 222,407 147,298 75,109
1,409,769 2,037,638 1,526,458 511,180
213,680 217,855 226,867 9.012)
5,000 10,000 10,000 -
218,680 227,855 236,867 (9,012)
6,175 6,175 6,175 -
572,713 578,463 576,463 -
578,888 584,638 584,638 -
2,207,337 2,850,131 2,347,963 502,168
781,247 844,573 762,051 82,522
494,278 505,333 482,921 22412
372,326 377,867 388,427 (10,560)
16,000 16,000 16,000 -
209,836 320,788 210,836 109,952
- 4,018,665 4,084,921 (66,256)
1,873.687 6,083,226 5,945,156 138,070
Continued
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Environmenlal management:

Total environmental management

Cooperative extension program

Total cooperative extension program

Totnl community developmsent

Nondepartmental:
Annexation seitiement payment
Other
Total nondepartmental

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and other charges
Total debt service

Other financing uses:

Transfers to Capital Projects Fund

Transfers to Special Revenue Funds

Transfers to-Public Utilities Fund
Total other financing uses

Total General Fund expenditures nnd other financing uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures nnd other financing uscs

Fund balance- beginning of year

Fund balance- end of year

Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
732,620 34.495 32,899 1,596
32,620 34,495 32,899 1,596
74,423 74,823 17,110 57,713
74,823 74,823 17,110 57,713
l,98‘1 ,130 6,192,544 5,995,165 197,379
1,084,000 1,193,025 1,193,025 -
230,361 185,245 121,538 63,707
1,314,361 1,378,270 1,314,563 63,707
426,516 426,516 31,516 395,000
2,142,911 2,142,911 2,784,497 (641,586)
2,569,427 2,569,427 2,816,013 (246,586)
75,000 1,163,111 - 1,163,111
1,976,536 1,976,536 1,826,748 149,788
571,270 1,071,270 - 1,071,270
2,622,806 4,210,917 1,826,748 2,384,169
56,001,999 64.884.451 59,475,871 5,408,580
(75,000) (3,584,607) 953,655 4,538,262
20,475,001 20,475,001 20,475,00_] -
§ 20,400,001 $ 16,890,394 § 21,428,656 § 4,538,262

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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The following procedures are used by the County in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1.

Prior to March 30, the County Administrator submits to the Board of Supervisors a proposed operating
and capital budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The General and Capital
Projects Fund budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resolution.

The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the department level or
category level. Only the Board of Supervisors can revise the appropriation for each department or
category. The County Administrator is authorized 1o transfer budgeted amounts within general
government departments; however, the School Board is authorized 1o transfer budgeted amounts within
the school system’s categories.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year and budgets
are legally adopted for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, and Proprietary funds of the
Primary Government and Component Unit - School Board.

All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Appropriations lapsed on June 30, 2012 for all County units. All unexpended appropriations of the
School Board revert back to the County at the end of each fiscal year.

The Primary Government have assigned fund balances for subsequent year’s years expenditures unless
the subsequent year’s years expenditures relate to restricted or committed resources
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit B-3

Year Ended June 30,2012
Capital Projocts
' Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Revenue from use of property $ - 3 - 8 81,499 3 81,499
Miscellaneous - 559,100 - (859,100)
Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth of Virginia - - 109,489 109,489
Total revenues - 559,100 190,988 190,988
Expenditures
Capital outlay 4,175,000 21,940,857 5,035,723 16,905,134
Bond issuance costs - - 284,568 284,568
Total expenditures 4,175,000 21,940,857 5,320,291 17,189,702
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (4,175,000)  (21,940,857) (5,129,303) (17,108,203)
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 75,000 354,011 - (354,011)
Operating transfers out - - - -
Bond proceeds 4,100,000 4,100,000 - (4,100,000)
Total other financing sources (uses), not 4,175,000 4,454,011 - (4,454,011)
Net change in fund balance - (16,927,746) (5,129,303) 11,798,443
Fund balances - beginning of year 39,201,620 39,201,620 39,201,620 -

Fund balances - end of year

$ 39,201,620 $ 22,273,874 §$ 34,072,317 $ 11,798,443

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

June 30,2012

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The following is a brief description of the nonmajor governmental funds reported by the County:

The Department of Social Services Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to
services provided to citizens in the community. Revenues are derived from state and federal
funding.

The Comprehensive Services Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to services
provided to the youth of the County. Revenues are derived from state and local {i unding.

The Asset Forfeiture Fund accounts for monies collected from the seizures of assets
connected to the illegal distribution of narcotics according to § 19.2-386.22 of the Code of
Virginia and governed by § 19.2-386.1-14 of the Code of Virginia. Revenues arc derived from
statc and local funding.

The County Fair Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to services provided to
the community to provide entertainment activities emphasizing the agriculture industry of the
County. Revenues are derived from charges for services and local funding.

The Museum Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the promotion and
maintenance of the County museum. Revenues are derived from charges for services and
local funding.

The E-911 Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to operation of the
Emergency Communications Center, which supports all Public Safety Response Agencies of
the county. Revenues are derived from local and state collected E911 wireless taxes and
recovered costs from the County and the towns of Smithfield and Windsor.

The Section 8 Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures to provide rental assistance and
other services to assist first time home buyers. Revenues are derived from Federal funding,.

The Community Development Block Grant Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures
related to management of the Federal rehabilitation loan program for individuals.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Combining Balance Sheets - Governmental Funds - Component Unit - School Board

Exhibit B-7

June 30, 2012

Asscts

Cash and investiments

Accounts receivable - net of allowances for uncollectibles
Inventory

Due from other funds

Due from other governmental units

Total assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to primary government

Due to other funds
Total-liabilities

Fund Balance
Fund balances:

Nonspendable: Inventory
Assigned to: Food Service

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balance

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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Governmental Funds

School School
Operating Cafeteria
Fund Fund ' Totals
$ 6,010,639 § 434,591 § 6,445,230
70,641 11,973 82,614
- 50,114 50,114
54,894 - 54,894
1,220,533 57,485 v 1,278,018
$ 7,356,707 $§ 554,163 $§ 7,910,870
$ 560,991 § 20,461 § 581,452
4,683,327 - 4,683,327
2,112,389 -
i 54,762 54,762
7.356,707 75,223 5,319,541
- 50,114 50,114
- 428,826 428,826
. 478,940 478,940
$ 7,356,707 § 554,163 § 5,798,481




Exhibit B-8
County of Isle of Wight, Virginla

Reconciliation of Balance Sheets - Component Unit - School Board
to the Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2012

Reconciliation of Balance Sheets - Component Unit - School Board
to the Statement of Not Assels

Total fund balances - School Board - governmental funds $ 478,940

Amounts reported for government activities in the Statement
of Net Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds, net of
accumulated depreciation.

Non depreciable capital assets 1,619,726
Depreciable capital assets 59,324,532
Accumulated depreciation (34,180,351)
Depreciable assets, net 25,144,181

Long-term obligations are not due and payablc in the current
period and are not reported in in funds
Compensated absences (583,543)
Net OPEB obligation (2,496,859)

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of
health benefits. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund is
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 703,211

Total net assets - School Board - governmental activities : $ 24,865,656

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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Exhibit B-9
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds - Component Unit - School Board

_Year Ended.June 30, 2012

Governmental Funds

School School
Operating Cafeteria
Fund Fund Total
Revenucs - '
Revenues from use of money
and property $ 50,592 § 1,145 § 51,737
Charges for services 135,161 580,585 715,746
Miscellancous 145,598 346,036 491,634
Recovered costs 24,912 - 24,912
Payment from the Primary Government 25,532,805 - 25,532,805
Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth 26,266,522 30,451 26,296,973
Federal 4,003,232 1,025,043 5,028,275
Total revenues $ 56,158,822 $§ 1,983,260 $ 58,142,082
Expenditures
Current:
Administration, attendance and health 2,064,870 - 2,064,870
Instructional services 40,152,491 - 40,152,491
Operations and maintenance 4,753,358 - 4,753,358
Pupil transportation 3,204,551 - 3,204,551
School food services - 2,060,057 2,060,057
Facilities 1,442,309 1,442,309
Technology 1,520,417 - 1,520,417
Capital outlay - - -
Debt service:
Principal 1,260,246 - 1,260,246
Interest 1,760,580 - 1,760,580
Total expenditures 56,158,822 2,060,057 58,218,879
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures - (76,797) (76,797)
Fund equity - boginning of year - 555,737 555,737
Fund equity - end of year - 478,940 478,940

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
2y P P
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities - Component Unit - School Board

Exhibit B-10

Year Ended June 30,2012

Net change in fund balances - School Board - governmental funds 5 (76,797)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays and transfers exceed depreciation
expense.
Joint activity-transfer of capital assets 1,170,169
Capital outlay 432,692
Depreciation expense (3,274,964)
Capital asset disposal (6,170)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences, do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Increase in compensated absences (42,288)
Increase in net OPEB obligation (573,096)
The internal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of health
benefits. The net income of the internal service fund is reported with
governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. (891,011)
Change in net assets of School Board - governmental activities $ (3,261,465)

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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Exhibit B-12
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund - Component Unit - School Board

June 30,2012

School Health

Assets Benefits Fund
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted § 1,413,272
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 615,841
Unearned revenues 94,088
Due to other funds 132
Total current liabilities 710,061
Net Assets
Net assets - unrestricted $ 703,211

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets -
Proprietary Fund - Component Unit - School Board

Exhibit B-13

Year Ended June 30,2012

Operating revenues
Recovered costs

Operating expenses
Healthcare benefits

Operating income

Nonoperating revenue
Revenue from use of money and property

Net income
Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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School Health
Benefits. Fund

§ 4,530,876

5,423,765

(892,889)

1,878

(891,011)

1,594,222

3 703,211




County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Exhibit B-14

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund - Component Unit - School Board

Year Ended June 30,2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Received from customers and users
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities
Due to other Funds

Net cash provided by non-capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income

Net cash provided by from investing activities
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash cquivalents - cnd of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

Operating income

School Health
Benefits Fl;nd

§ 4,292,744
(5,337,286)

(1,044,542)

1,878

(1,042,532)

2,455,804

$ 1,413,272

$ (892,889)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

Change in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

Net cash used in operating activitics

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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$ (1,044,542)




Exhibit B-15
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Combining Statements of Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2012
Special Student Totals
Welfare Activity Agency
Funds Funds Funds
Asscets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,842 § 312,692 § 320,534
Linbilities
Amounts held for social services clients 7,842 - 7,842
Amounts held for others - 312,692 312,692
Total liabilities $ 7,842 § 312,692 § 320,534

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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Exhibit B-16
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Combining Statements of Changes in.Assets and Liabilities - Fiduciary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2012
' Balance ' Balance
Beginning End of
of Year Additions Deletions Year
Special Welfare
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 36,586 § 103,046 § 131,790 § 7.842
Liabilities
Amounts held for social services clients § 36,586 § 103,046 § 131,790 $ 7,842
Student Activities
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents py 346,285 $ 1,685313 § 1,718,906 $ 312,692
Liabilitics
Amounts held for others $ 346,285 § 1,685,313 § 1,718,906 $ 312,692

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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Exhibit B-17
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statements of Net Assets - Component Unit - Industrial Development Authority

June 30, 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 991,128
Receivables 317,340
Total current assets 1,308,468
Noncurrent assets
Deposits 100,000
Capital lease receivable 167,348
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 11,040,453
Depreciable 51,150
Total noncurrent assets 11,358,951
Total assets 12,667,419
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 171
Escrow payable 1,000
Note payable - current portion 28,742
Total current liabilities 29,913
Noncurrent liabilities
Note payable - less current portion 120,158
Total liabilities 150,071
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,091,603
Unrestricted 1,425,745
Total net assets $ 12,517,348

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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Exhibit B-18
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assels -
Component Unit - Industrial Development Authority

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 45,541

Operating expenses

Operations 16,650
Compensation 3,975
Depreciation 1,100
Total operating expenses 21,725

Operating income 23,816

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Property rental 17,692

Interest income 12,274
Interest expense (10,881)

Total nonoperating revenues, net 19,085

Change in net assets 42,901

Net assets - beginning of year 12,474,447

Net assets - end of year $ 12,517,348

See accompanying independent auditors' report
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Exhibit B-19
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statements of Cash Flows - Component Unit - Industrial Development Authority

Year Ended June 30,2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Received from customers and users 3 45,541
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (20,625)
Net cash provided by operating activities 24,916
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (52,988)
Deposits (50,000)
Principal payments on notes payable (26,897)
Interest paid on notes (10,881)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (140,766)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income 12,274
Principal collections on capital lease receivable 28,910
Rental of property 17,692
Net cash provided by investing activities 58,876
Change in cash and cash equivalents (56,974)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 1,048,102
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 3 991,128

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating income $ 23,816
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,100

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 24,916

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Statistical Section Overview

Year Ended June 30,2012

This part of the County of Isle of Wight’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as context for understanding the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and
required supplementary information says about the County’s overall financial health.

Contents Exhibits

Financial Trends

These tables contain trend information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the County’s ability to generate its property and sales taxes. C-1 through C-4

Revenue Capacity

These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting
the County’s ability to generate its property and sales taxes. C-5 through C-10

Debt Capacity

These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability

of the County’s current levels of outstanding debt and the County’s ability

to issue debt in the future. C-11 through C-12

Demographic and Economic Information

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the County’s financial activities
take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other governments. Cl13

Operating Information

These tables contain information about the County’s operation and resources to
help the reader understand how the County’s financial information relates
to the services the County provides and the activities it performs. C-14 through C-16

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Principal Property Taxpayers

Exhibit C-8

June 30,2012
2012 2011
Percent of Percent of
Total Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation
Taxpayer Real Estate  Rank  Real Estate Real Estate  Rank  Real Estate
International Paper $120,766,900 1 2.82%  $120,790,900 I 2.85%
Smithfield Foods 40,480,400 2 0.94% 40,480,400 2 0.95%
Inland RI Holdings LLC etals 39,789,300 3 0.93% 39,789,300 3 0.94%
Gwaltney of Smithfield, Ltd. 28,626,800 4 0.67% 28,626,800 4 0.67%
Eagle Harbor Apartments, LP 26,774,000 5 0.62% 26,774,000 5 0.63%
LDI Virginia LLC 14,992,400 6 0.35% 14,992,400 6 0.35%
Sentara Healthcare 14,787,500 7 0.34% 14,787,500 7 0.35%
Eagle Harbor LLC 13,667,400 8 0.32% 13,667,400 8 0.32%
Carolina Cold Storage LTD 10,668,700 9 0.25% 10,430,300 9 0.25%
Eagle Harbor Shopping Center, LLC 10,397,000 10 0.24% 10,397,000 10 0.24%
$320,950,400 7.49%  $320,736,000 7.56%
Percent of Percent of
Total Total
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation
Personal Personal Personal Personal
Taxpayer Property Property (1) Property Property (1)
International Paper $ 2,944,385 6 0.40%  $542,058,476 1 42.80%
Gwaltney of Smithficld Ltd. 92,421,822 I 12.56% 82,255,724 2 6.49%
Isle of Wight Forest Products 7,752,701 3 1.05% 48,602,147 3 3.84%
GE Capital 5,910,297 4 0.80% 11,520,594 4 0.91%
Specialty Minerals, Inc. 8,262,782 2 1.12% 8,262,782 5 0.65%
Cost Plus, Inc. 4,958,434 5 0.67% 4,918,322 6 0.39%
Bloom/Food Lion 2,426,953 8 0.33% 2,411,981 7 0.19%
Charter Communications 2,404,541 9 0.33% 2,360,786 8 0.19%
Smithfield Ham & Products Co. 1,805,645 9 0.14%
Montague Farms Inc. 1,687,886 10 0.13%
Southern Structural Steer 2,439,968 7 0.33% - 0.00%
Bay Sand 2,339,806 10 0.32% - 0.00%
$131,861,689 17.93%  $705,884,343 55.74%

(1) Includes personal property, mobile homes, and machinery and tools.
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County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Demographic Statistics

Exhibit C-13

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Source:

(1)
(2)
®3)
)

(1

Population

35,457 (4)
35,270 (4)
36,729 (3)
35,659 (3)
34,620 (3)
33,612
33,090
32,417
31,600
30,419

Weldon-Cooper Center for Public Service, UVA.

L N B < B R ]

(M
Per Capita
Income

40,710
29,594
37,754
36,654
35,586
34,549
33,543
32,275
30,711
29,894

Virginia Employment Commission.
Estimated assuming a 3% growth rate from the prior year.

2010 Census Data
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4
4
3
€)
©)
€)

Registered
Voters

26,534
26,023
25,675
25,732
24,131
23,356
22,501
21,639
21,594
20,213

)
Unemployment
Rate

6.3%
11%
7.7%
6.7%
3.7%
3.0%
3.1%
3.5%
3.2%
3.4%
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Exhibit C-16
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Seven Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Sheriff
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Patrol units 43 43 51 56 45 4] 40

Fire and Rescue

FFire Units 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Rescue Units 4 4 4 4 4 q 4
Refuse collection

Collection trucks 6 6 6 6 5 5 5
Public Schools

School Facilities 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Park and recreation

Parks 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Acreage 570 570 570 570 565 565 565

Playgrounds 4 4 4 4 8 8 8

Baseball/softball diamonds 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Soccer/football fields 12 12 12 12 8 9 10

Community centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Museums 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Library Facilitics 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
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Exhibit C-16
County of Isle of Wight, Virginia

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Programn

Last S_even Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006°
Sheriff
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 ] 1
Patrol units 43 43 51 56 45 41 40

Fire and Rescue

Fire Units 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Rescue Units 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Refuse collection

Collection trucks 6 6 6 6 5 5 5
Publjc Schools

School Facilities 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Park and recreation

Parks 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Acreage 570 570 570 570 565 565 565

Playgrounds 4 4 4 4 8 8 8

Baseball/softball diamonds 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Soccer/football fields 12 12 12 12 8 9 10

Community centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Museums 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Library Facilities 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
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